

# MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 11 JULY 2000

# **INDEX**

No:	Item Pa	age
	ATTENDANCES	1
	APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE	2
	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME	3
	DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL\NON FINANCIAL INTEREST	7
C35-07/00	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 27 JUNE 2000	8
	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR WITHOUT DISCUSSION	8
C36-07/00	PETITIONS	9
	REPORT NO:	
	POLICY	
CJ162 - 07/00	STANDING ORDERS REVIEW COMMITTEE - LOCAL LAW	10
CJ163 - 07/00	- [01369] [05885]AMENDMENT TO POLICY 2.3.3 - USE OF COMMON SEAL AND THE SIGNATORIES FOR CONTRACT EXECUTION - [18085, 26176	
CI164 07/00	13399]	
CJ164 - 07/00	POLICY 3.2.5 – DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR WATERVIEW ESTATE, KINGSLEY – [46869]	
	FINANCE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT	
CJ165 - 07/00	SCHEDULE OF DOCUMENTS EXECUTED BY MEANS OF	21
CJ166 - 07/00	AFFIXING THE COMMON SEAL – [15876] SETTING OF MEETING TIMES – BRIEFING SESSIONS – [08122]	
CJ167 - 07/00	CITY OF COCKBURN INQUIRY - [02004]	
CJ168 - 07/00	VEHICLE TENDER 99-99/00 - PURCHASE OF TWO EIGHT TONNE	
20100 07700	TIPPERS – [43843]	
CJ169 - 07/00	REGISTER OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY – [07032]	35
CJ170 - 07/00	MINUTES OF THE CONSERVATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE	
	- 22 JUNE 2000 – [12168]	36

CJ171 - 07/00	MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE	
G1150 05/00	MEETING – 21 JUNE 2000 - [00906]	37
CJ172 - 07/00	MINUTES OF JOONDALUP YOUTH ADVISORY COUNCILS	•
	MEETINGS – MAY, 2000 – [38245]	38
CJ173 - 07/00	HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE NORTH METROPOLITAN	
	TRANSPORT BROKERAGE PILOT PROJECT - [16813] [01075]	39
	INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT	
CJ174 - 07/00	ENTERPRISE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – INFRASTRUCTURI	Ε
	MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS SERVICES (OUTSIDE WORKERS	5) -
	[43830]	
CJ175 - 07/00	PARKING - BATAVIA PLACE, KALLAROO - [01412] [08077 0005	55] 50
CJ176 - 07/00	PETITION - CLEAN UP VACANT LAND IN DELAMERE AVENU	E
	CURRAMBINE - [09382]	
CJ177 - 07/00	PETITION - INSTALLATION OF SECURITY FLOODLIGHTING A	
	PERCY DOYLE PARK DUNCRAIG - [02056] [14064]	54
CJ178 - 07/00	WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR THE CITY OF	
	JOONDALUP - [36958]	56
	PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT	
CJ179 - 07/00	PROPOSED MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT	
	LOT 11 (923) WHITFORDS AVENUE, WOODVALE - [20082]	61
CJ180 - 07/00	PROPOSED PIGEON LOFT, ENCLOSURE AND KEEPING OF	
	PIGEONS AT LOT 45 (9) SPOONBILL GROVE, KINGSLEY - [224	30]67
CJ181 - 07/00	PROPOSED SHOPPING CENTRE, CONSULTING ROOMS, STAGE	E
	AND OTHER FACILITIES, LOT 715 (NO 110) FLINDERS AVENUE	E,
	HILLARYS – [04412]	73
	REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	74
	DATE OF NEXT MEETING	74
	CLOSURE	74

## CITY OF JOONDALUP

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBER, JOONDALUP CIVIC CENTRE, BOAS AVENUE, JOONDALUP, ON TUESDAY, 11 JULY 2000

## **OPEN AND WELCOME**

The Mayor declared the meeting open at 1900 hrs.

### **ATTENDANCES**

Mayor:

J BOMBAK, JP

### **Elected Members:**

Cr P KADAK Lakeside Ward from 1932 hrs

Cr L A EWEN-CHAPPELL Lakeside Ward Cr S P MAGYAR Marina Ward

Cr A T NIXON North Coastal Ward
Cr J F HOLLYWOOD, JP North Coastal Ward

Cr A A WALKER Pinnaroo Ward from 1918 hrs.

Cr P ROWLANDS Pinnaroo Ward
Cr T BARNETT South Ward
Cr A W WIGHT, JP South Ward

Cr A L PATTERSON South Coastal Ward

Cr G KENWORTHY South Coastal Ward Absent 1945 to 1947 hrs

Cr J A HURST Whitfords Ward Cr C MACKINTOSH Whitfords Ward

## **Officers:**

Chief Executive Officer: L O DELAHAUNTY Director, Resource Management: J B TURKINGTON

Director, Planning & Development: C HIGHAM
Director, Infrastructure Management: D DJULBIC

Director, Community Development: C HALL Absent 1933 to 1940 hrs

Executive Manager, Strategic Planning:

Manager Approval Services:

Manager, Executive Services:

Manager, Council Support Services:

Publicity Officer:

Committee Clerk:

R FISCHER

C TERELINCK

K ROBINSON

M SMITH

L BRENNAN

J AUSTIN

## In Attendance

Professor Millicent Poole, Vice Chancellor Edith Cowan University

The Mayor welcomed Professor Millicent Poole, Vice Chancellor Edith Cowan University, as this evening's invited guest.

Professor Poole thanked the Mayor and Councillors for the opportunity of attending this evening's meeting as she believes this to be a way of reinforcing the very close relationship that ECU has been able to build with the City of Joondalup.

Professor Poole stated that ECU is 100 years old and is West Australia's second largest university, with 20,000 students and 2000 staff; its assets are valued at \$380 million and last year had an income of \$166 million of which 49% was from government sources and 51% from student fees and other sources. She advised that ECU has five campus; Bunbury, Churchlands, Claremont, Joondalup and Mount Lawley. Through a very detailed analytic strategic plan, ECU has decided its future lies in campus consolidation, and would like to exit the Claremont campus and the Churchlands campus and from the sale of those two assets, given government approval and support, invest those assets in the Joondalup campus, as ECU believes in the future development of this northern growth corridor and want to very much be a part of that new development. By doing this, it is anticipated that ECU will grow from 3000 students at Joondalup to 6000 students by the year 2005 and the campus has a capacity to grow to 18,000 or so students in the long term, which is seen as an enormous multiplier effect for the economy of the City of Joondalup.

Professor Poole said that ECU has a very good relationship with the West Coast College of TAFE, and with the West Coast College of TAFE were successful for getting the bid for the Police Academy in Joondalup.

Professor Poole stated that the focus of ECU is on the knowledge based service sector, which is the growth sector of the economy, being financial and business services, communication information technology services, sport and recreational services, teaching/health services etc. She stated that the support of Council is appreciated, in particular for its recent support in helping ECU to realise one of the enterprise parts of its mission, that is to get the Ansett Call Centre at the Joondalup Campus, which will bring approximately two hundred jobs. She also referred to the co-operation from Council member and staff of the City and with North West Metro Business Association, to establish a business incubator adjacent to the Ansett Call Centre. In conclusion, Professor Poole again thanked the Mayor and Councillors for the opportunity to attend this evening.

## APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Apology – Cr D Carlos.

Late Apologies – Crs A Walker and P Kadak.

There were 14 members of the Public and 2 members of the Press in attendance.

## **PUBLIC QUESTION TIME**

The following question, submitted by Mr R De Gruchy of Sorrento, was taken on notice at the Council meeting held on 27 June 2000:

Re - Possible Privatisation of Craigie Leisure Centre:

- Q1 If a survey is conducted and the majority of members do not want this to occur, would Council listen to the members' wishes?
- Al The proposal to market test the Craigie Leisure Centre is being undertaken to compare current results with efficiencies and improvements which may be gained for the benefit of the community. This decision is taken after disappointing results under the current staff structure and the belief of management that cost savings and better customer service can be achieved. Any decision by the Council on the future management of these centres should now at least be taken after viewing the results of the tender process.

## The following question was submitted by Mr Vic Harman, Ocean Reef:

- Q1 Further to my questions at the Briefing Session on Tuesday 4 July, When will Council be given the opportunity to consider the notification to the public of the subject matter of items discussed behind closed doors which subsequently appear on the Agenda of an Ordinary meeting of Council?
- Al A report will be presented to the briefing session of the Council to be held on Tuesday next, 18 July.

## The following questions were submitted by Mr M Sideris, of Mullaloo:

- Q1 The total value of the service provided by Matrix Consulting Group and Behavioural Science Investigative Consultancy is recorded in Report CJ065-03/00 as \$47,000 and not \$45,000 as advised to me (Ordinary meeting 13 June 2000). Can you please advise the total value for this service contract?
- A1 The amount stated in report CJ065-03/00 was incorrect and the amount actually for the consultancy was \$45,000 as advised at Ordinary Meeting 13/6/00.
- Q2 If tenders were not sought for the service, answer Ordinary Meeting 13 June 2000, how did Council find, seek or solicit the consultancy services to discuss Council's requirements?
- A2 At the time, Council officers were aware of the firms in the Crime Audit area working with Local Government.

Preliminary discussions were held with three firms to ascertain availability and likely price.

One formal quotation was received being from the appointed firm, Matrix Consulting.

- Q3 How many formal quotations were obtained prior to awarding the contract? The previously given response (Ordinary meeting 13 June 2000) only states that tenders were not required to be called.
- A3. See answer to Question 2 and answer to Question 1 in Minutes of 13 June 2000.
- Q4 If the appointment of the consultancy service was not required to be submitted to Council for approval, can you then advise what approval or authority process was used?
- A4. Normal practice requires three quotations. Three firms were approached. Only one quotation was received which was considered acceptable and the appointment was made administratively as the money was allocated in the budget.

## The following question was submitted by Ms Karen Gates of Kallaroo:

- *Q1* In reference to CJ175-07/00 Parking, Batavia Place, Kallaroo. If the interim parking restrictions are granted, when can the residents expect to see the signs erected and would it be possible for a Ranger to be present during the first week at least to inform and enforce the restrictions?
- Al The normal process is that after adoption by Council, a works order is raised to carry out the necessary work. In this instance, parking restriction sign installation may take between 2-3 weeks depending on sign availability. Ranger Services will be requested to monitor the location on an ongoing basis as soon as the signs are erected.

## The following question was submitted by Mrs Magyar, of Heathridge:

Re: the decision of Council in June 2000 to list as an item of high importance in the 2000/01 draft budget, gap funding of \$7,695 for a creche worker at Granny Spiers Community House, for the financial year 2000/01. Considering that this is listed as an item of high importance:

- When and by whom was it decided to give a contract to Jill Cameron and Associates to review Granny Spiers?
- On Friday 2 June 2000 the City received a one paragraph application for funding from Granny Spiers Community House to support the operation of the creche facility for 2000/01. The application for funding was subsequently communicated to elected members who were also advised that the application needed to be assessed. Following the Council meeting of 13 June 2000, a more detailed application for funding was requested from Granny Spiers Community House in accordance with the City's Communing Funding Program guidelines. The Director Community Development authorised the engagement of Jill Cameron and Associates to assess this funding application. Jill Cameron and Associates was engaged on 5 July 2000 when the application for funding was received.
- *Q2* What is the cost of this contract to Jill Cameron and Associates?
- A2 \$60 per hour for ten hours.

- Q3 Presuming that Jill Cameron and Associates will present Council with a report, will that report be given to the Councillors themselves, and if so, when will the Councillors be given the report?
- A3 Officers are preparing a report for presentation to Council for its meeting of 25 July 2000. The report will include information provided by Jill Cameron and Associates as is normal practice.
- Q4 How does this contract for the review fit in with the resolution of Council to list the funding as a high priority?
- All applications for funding are required to be assessed by Council officers. The City's Community Funding Guidelines require such applications to be assessed in accordance with those guidelines. Because of Council's resolution it has been necessary to assess the application from Granny Spiers Community House so that the application can be considered as part of the Council's normal budgetary process.

Cr Walker entered the Chamber at 1918 hrs.

## Mr Ron De Gruchy, Sorrento:

- Q1 In relation to the Craigie Leisure Centre, does Council intend to conduct a survey of the ratepayers of the City of Joondalup, whether they wish to go ahead with the privatisation of the management of the Craigie Leisure Centre?
- A1 Response by Director Community Development: There is no intention at this stage to conduct a survey, but I draw to Councillors' attention that a report on this matter will be prepared following the closure of tenders and at that point in time Council may wish to give consideration to such a matter.
- Q2 In relation to Item CJ153–06/00, has Council completed the modeling exercises on rate capping as agreed to on the 27/6/2000?
- A2 Response by Director Resource Management: Rate models have been undertaken and have been completed. Subsequent to that meeting on 27 June, we have had legal advice that rate capping, as we know it, is illegal under the Local Government Act 1995.
- Q3 Are the results of the capping exercise going to be made public?
- A3 Response by Director Resource Management: That is for Council to decide.
- When does Council expect to decide on a rate in the dollar for the rates for the year 2000/01?
- A4 Response by Director Resource Management: The rate in the dollar will be formulated at the time that Council adopts its budget. At this point in time we are looking at late July/early August for rate adoption.

## Mr John Rifici, Warwick Road, Hillarys:

- Q1 I am concerned about the business park, in particular Winton Road. We have a road that is not suitable as a business road. I wonder if the Council is considering the widening of Winton Road?
- Al Response by Director Infrastructure Management: I am not aware of any study being undertaken in relation to widening of Winton Road, but I will obtain further details from Mr Rifici and investigate the matter.
- Q2 There is a problem with Shenton Avenue and the entry point into Winton Road. Could Council officers inspect the area on a Saturday morning, to investigate the cause of the problem?
- A2 Response by Director Infrastructure Management: I believe this concerns Shenton Avenue and Pontiac Way, and the entrance into the industrial area from the northern side. Feasibility studies are currently being undertaken, and as part of that study we are also looking at duplicating the bridge which is adjacent to that intersection. It is anticipated a report will be presented to Council during August.

## Mr M Sideris, Mullaloo:

- Q1 In the response given earlier to my question number 4, I understand the CEO referred to an administrative process in his verbal response tonight. Can I be enlightened as to what that administrative process was? Or what the authoritative process was?
- Al Response by Chief Executive Officer: Where the Council has agreed to go ahead with the study, and you might recall this one was also partly funded by a grant from the state government, and where it is budgeted for, then those projects can proceed providing that detailed reports are then presented to Council.
- If Council has not sought tenders, not obtained expressions of interest, and not advertised, but has found someone who happens to be working in the industry, and is spending in the excess of \$20,000 of public monies, then I have got some grave concerns about Council being able to demonstrate due process. Council did not obtain three quotations, and has not done a whole host of things, so how can you assure me that due process did occur and that you did obtain a true and fair price for that work?
- A2 Response by Chief Executive Officer: The policy of the Council, where a cost is below the \$50,000 plateau which is laid down by the tender regulations, is that the Council is to obtain three quotes on a particular project. That was done in this case.
- *Q3* It states that only one quotation was obtained.
- A3 Response by Chief Executive Officer: I think you will find that there was pricing provided and that is quite often what happens, as the time involved to get the other people to respond sometimes does hold up a project. As far as canvassing people that are active within the industry, you are probably aware that the grants being made available for the government for security audits have not only been undertaken by this City but a lot of other local authorities, particularly in the metropolitan area, and

therefore there is a number of consultants that have been involved in these studies. So I dare that say gaining access, and talking to other local authorities, was where they are able to quickly get an assessment of what people are doing satisfactory jobs.

- Q4 How do you get around state government purchase guidelines for goods and services, where it states quite clearly that three formal quotations must be sought and obtained for monies spent in excess of \$20,000?
- A4 Response by Chief Executive Officer: I am not sure of the state government's guidelines. The general policy in local government as an industry is that, below \$50,000, three quotations are required to be received.

## Mr Robert Ettridge, Joondalup City North:

- Q1 Has there been any progress yet in the rezoning of the industrial park to allow for panel and paint industry?
- Al Response by Director Planning and Development: The uses referred to will be uses that the Council can consider under District Planning Scheme Number 2. That Scheme is currently with the Minister for Planning and it seems that we might have the new Scheme in operation within the next 2-3 months.
- Q2 Is there a reason why it will take that long?
- A2 Response by Director Planning and Development: The matter is in the hands of the Minister for Planning. Once the Minister does deal with it, and returns it to the Council, there is a process to follow which involves the Council making some amendments to the Scheme that the Minister will have requested. It will then be presented to the Council for formal adoption, sent back to the Minister and then eventually be gazetted. That is, by its very nature, a process which will take about 2 months.

Cr Kadak entered the Chamber at 1932 hrs.

### DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTEREST

Cr Carlos previously stated his intention to declare a financial interest in Item CJ179-07/00 as he is a shareholder of Telstra. (Cr Carlos was not present at this evening's meeting).

Director Planning and Development declared a financial interest in Item CJ179-07/00 as he is a shareholder of Telstra.

Cr Nixon, in accordance with the City's Code of Conduct, declared an interest that may affect his impartiality in Item CJ176-07/00 as he is a local resident in the area.

Cr Kadak advised that he is a shareholder of Telstra, however his shareholding is not to an extent which required him to declare a financial interest.

Director Community Development left the Chamber at 1933 hrs.

### **CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES**

## C35-07/00 MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING – 27 JUNE 2000

**OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION** that the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 27 June 2000, be confirmed as a true and correct record.

MOVED Cr Rowlands SECONDED Cr Barnett that the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 27 June 2000, be confirmed as a true and correct record, subject to the confirmation of the following correction.

Page 2, Question 1 raised by Mr Ron De Gruchy, be amended to read: "In relation to the Principal Activity Plan for the <u>next</u> five years...."

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

### ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR WITHOUT DISCUSSION

### **OLYMPIC TORCH**

The Olympic Torch spotlight fell on Joondalup on 7 and 8 July, and it was a truly memorable weekend. It was quite awesome to see the Joondalup community come together to celebrate a unique moment in all of our lifetimes. The crowd at Arena Joondalup for the lighting of the cauldron has been estimated at more than 10,000, and the event was beamed live by television all over the State.

Never again will we have the chance to see the Olympic Torch at such close proximity. Crowds three-deep lined the route of the torch on both Friday and Saturday. We should all be proud of the part Joondalup played in this significant event.

I thank all the organisers and volunteers and all those people lining the road to cheer on the Olympic Torch through our City. It was a great show of community spirit.

## **CURRAMBINE COMMUNITY CENTRE**

The City has begun the community consultation process for the proposed Currambine Community Centre. The consultancy firm "Community Perspectives" has been engaged to carry out a comprehensive consultation. So far, views sought include those of the Currambine Community Association, MLA Chris Baker and local groups, including youth organisations. A public meeting to discuss community needs will be scheduled in August.

Director Community Development entered the Chamber at 1940 hrs.

### CITY BUDGET BEING FINALISED

The City is in the final stages of the preparation of its 2000/01 budget. The carried forward surplus from 1999/00 is being finalised together with a list of carried forward works. A further budget workshop with elected members is scheduled for early next week at which major 2000/01 budget decisions will be discussed. Depending on the outcomes of that

workshop, it is expected that the City's 2000/01 budget will be adopted late July/early August 2000. Rates will be forwarded within a week of that adoption.

### **COUNCIL NEWS**

The winter edition of Council News, Council's bulletin to residents, will be delivered to all 55,000 homes in the City this coming weekend.

### **PETITIONS**

# C36-07/00 PETITIONS SUBMITTED TO THE COUNCIL MEETING – 11 JULY 2000

PETITION REQUESTING INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES, AND FOOTPATH - GALLEON ROAD, BELDON, CREATION OF CUL-DE-SACS GALLEON ROAD AND DOLPHIN WAY, BELDON – [01294] [45297]

A 97-signature petition has been received from Beldon residents requesting the following:

- 1 installation of traffic calming devices, on the corner of Galleon Road between Nos 23-27;
- blocking off Galleon Road where it meets with Dolphin Way and the creation of culde-sacs, each cul-de-sac having its own entry from Ensign Way;
- 3 provision of footpath for safer walking.

This petition will be referred to Infrastructure Management for action.

## MOVED Cr Magyar, SECONDED Cr Rowlands that the petition requesting:

- 1 installation of traffic calming devices, on the corner of Galleon Road between Nos 23-27;
- blocking off Galleon Road where it meets with Dolphin Way and the creation of cul-de-sacs, each cul-de-sac having its own entry from Ensign Way;
- 3 provision of footpath for safer walking;

be received and referred to the appropriate Business Units for action.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

### **POLICY**

# CJ162 - 07/00 STANDING ORDERS REVIEW COMMITTEE -LOCAL LAW - [01369] [05885]

WARD - All

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 1

## **Summary of Purpose and Effect (was read aloud at the Council Meeting)**

The first action in the process of adopting a local law requires a summary of the purpose and effect to be read aloud by the Mayor. The summary is as follows:

"The purpose of this local law is to:

provide a set of enforceable procedures to assist in the good conduct of Council, committee and elector meetings.

The intent of this local law is to:

result in better decision making by Council, the orderly and efficient conduct of meetings dealing with Council business and greater community understanding of the business of the Council by providing open and accountable local government."

## **SUMMARY**

This report provides details of several amendments to the proposed Standing Orders Local Law that were considered and agreed at the meeting of the Standing Orders Review Committee held on 21 June 2000.

This report also covers the first of two parts of the process to be followed in adopting the proposed new Standing Orders Local Law 2000. The process is in accordance with section 3.12 of the Local Government Act 1995. (The Act) The first part involves:

- reading aloud the purpose and intent of the proposed local law, at the meeting
- the giving of statewide and local public notice that the local government proposes to make a local law. Matters to be included in that notice:
  - (i) the purpose and effect of the local law;
  - (ii) advice that copies of the proposed local law can be obtained from the local government; and
  - (iii) inviting submissions for six weeks after giving the notice.

This process is outlined in greater detail in the Details section of this report.

### **BACKGROUND**

The report outlining the review of the Standing Orders Local Law was first considered by Council at its meeting held on 28 March 2000. (Item 055 – 03/00 refers) At that meeting it was resolved to appoint a Standing Orders Review Committee (the Committee) and defer consideration of the Standing Orders Local Law until the Committee presented Council with its report.

The Committee met on 2 May 2000 and again on 6 and 21 June 2000. A copy of the Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 21 June 2000, recommending the Standing Orders Local Law be advertised for public comment, are included as Attachment 1 of this report.

### **DETAILS**

## **Changes to Standing Orders**

The proposed Standing Orders Local Law first submitted to Council at its meeting on 28 March 2000, was used by the Standing Orders Review Committee as the base document for discussion. As such, it included all those changes previously outlined in the first report to Council.

Subsequent changes made to the proposed Standing Orders Local Law were based on additional information provided to Committee Members dated 16 June 2000. The changes were agreed at the Committee Meeting of 21 June 2000. A copy of that additional information is attached to the Committee minutes.

The additional information outlined the formal and informal opportunities members have to raise matters with the Council and have them recorded while having the benefit of receiving a factual and detailed report to facilitate informed decision making. These opportunities are seen as significantly better than those provided through questions on notice, which traditionally receive the briefest possible answer, usually a "yes" or "no". The brief answers without clarification, frequently give the wrong impression and could lead to confusion.

The additional information also outlined the significant changes made in monitoring staff performance and accountability of staff and members. There is no need for questions on notice, with other, better options available to Council members already in place.

Changes made to the proposed Standing Orders are detailed as follows in order of clause number.

## **Calling of meetings**

Clause 6(2) has been amended by the addition of the words "or as required from time to time". This adds greater flexibility for setting meeting times and days.

## Public access to agendas and supporting information

Clause 8(2) has been amended by the addition of the words "may" and "on such occasions". This adds greater flexibility and clarification for dealing with confidential matters.

## Disclosure of interest affecting impartiality

Clause 20 has been completely re worded in keeping with legal advice, to better reflect the provisions of Administration Regulation 34C.

## Motions of which previous notice has been given

Clause 25(2) has been amended to include a requirement that the notice be signed by the member giving notice and that the notice be submitted 7 clear days before the meeting rather than 14. It is considered that 14 clear days would not achieve the result initially intended.

Clause 25(6) is a new sub clause which enables a notice of motion to be amended or withdrawn if it contains adverse reflection, imputes motive or is offensive or insulting. This clause ensures a high level of professionalism can be maintained in the meeting process.

### Motions to be seconded

Clause 52(3) has been amended by the addition of the words "is deemed to have" and change the word "reserve" to "reserved". The clause now provides in seconding a motion, the seconder has automatically reserved the right to speak on the motion rather than having to reserve the right at the time of seconding. This does not mean that the seconder must speak on the motion.

## Mover or seconder to be deemed to have spoken

With the changes made to clause 52, the above clause that was formerly numbered 56 has been deleted from the proposed Standing Orders.

## **Local Law Making Procedure**

Section 3.12 of the Local Government Act 1995, details the procedure that a local government must follow when making a local law. The details relating to the first stage of making a local law are:

- **"3.12** (1) In making a local law a local government is to follow the procedure described in this section, in the sequence it is described.
  - (2) At a Council meeting the person presiding is to read aloud, or cause to be read aloud, a summary of the purpose and effect of the proposed local law.
  - (3) The local government is to -
    - (a) give statewide and local public notice stating that -
      - (i) the local government proposes to make a local law the purpose and effect of which is summarised in the notice;
      - (ii) a copy of the proposed local law may be inspected or obtained at any place specified in the notice; and

- (iii) submissions about the proposed local law may be made to the local government before a day to be specified in the notice, being a day not less than 6 weeks after the notice is first given.
- (b) as soon as the notice is given, give a copy of the proposed local law and a copy of the notice to the Minister and, if another Minister administers the Act under which the proposed local law is proposed to be made, to that other Minister, and
- (c) provide a copy of the proposed local law, in accordance with the notice, to any person requesting it.
- (4) After the last day for submissions, the local government is to consider any submissions made and may make the local law\* as proposed or make a local law\* that is not significantly different from what was proposed.

\*Special Majority Required "

### COMMENT

The changes agreed at the Standing Orders Review Committee meeting of 21 June 2000, have been made to the proposed Standing Orders Local Law 2000 included as attachment 2 to this report. Additions to the local law document have been shown bolded.

Legal advice was obtained on several of the changes made to the proposed standing orders local law.

The Standing Orders Review Committee have recommended that the Council approves advertising of the proposed City of Joondalup Standing Orders Local Law 2000, to seek public comment

The Mayor read the Summary of Purpose and Intent of the Local Law to the meeting.

## MOVED Mayor Bombak, SECONDED Cr Rowlands that Council:

- NOTES the unconfirmed minutes of the Standing Orders Review Committee held on Wednesday, 21 June 2000 and forming Attachment 1 to Report CJ162-07/00;
- 2 in accordance with section 3.12 of the Local Government Act 1995, APPROVES the advertising of the proposed local law, "City of Joondalup Standing Orders Local Law 2000" and forming Attachment 2 to Report CJ162-07/00, in order to seek public comment.

Discussion ensued.

Cr Kenworthy left the Chamber at 1945 hrs and returned at 1947 hrs.

## **AMENDMENT MOVED Cr Magyar, SECONDED Cr Nixon that Council:**

- NOTES the unconfirmed minutes of the Standing Orders Review Committee held on Wednesday, 21 June 2000 and forming Attachment 1 to Report CJ162-07/00;
- in accordance with section 3.12 of the Local Government Act 1995, APPROVES the advertising of the proposed local law, "City of Joondalup Standing Orders Local Law 2000" and forming Attachment 2 to Report CJ162-07/00, in order to seek public comment, subject to the following amendments:
  - 2.1 Part 3 Business at Meetings, Order of Business, clause 14 (1), to include, Questions with Due Notice, before Reports;
  - 2.2 Part 3 Business at Meetings, Order of Business clause, 14 (1), to include, Questions without Due Notice, after Questions with Due Notice;
  - 2.3 Part 3 Business at Meetings, Order of Business clause, 14 (1), to include, Motions for Reports;
  - 2.4 Part 3 Business at Meetings, Order of Business, clause 14 (1), to include, Public Explanation of Resolutions of Council;
  - 2.5 Part 3 Business at Meetings, Order of Business, new clause after clause 21, Questions with Due Notice. Questions with Due Notice are to be given to the CEO at least two clear days before the meeting at which it is to be asked. Where a question contains any word or words which:
    - (a) reflect adversely on the character or actions of a member, officer or other person; or
    - (b) impute any motive to any member officer; or
    - (c) are offensive or insulting,

## then the CEO:

- (i) after consultation with the Mayor, may reject the motion; or
- (ii) after consultation with the member who submitted the question, amend the form but not the substance of the motion so as to delete the word or words.

If the member submitting the question, does not agree with the CEO's amendment, then the matter may be dealt with behind closed doors, if a majority of members agree that the question should be asked in its original form;

- 2.6 Part 3 business at meetings, order of business, new clause after clause 21, Questions without Due Notice, Questions without Due Notice are to be given to the CEO at least two clear hours before the meeting at which it is to be asked. Where a question contains any word or words which:
  - (a) reflect adversely on the character or actions of a member, officer or other person; or
  - (b) impute any motive to any member officer; or
  - (c) are offensive or insulting,

then the CEO:

- (i) after consultation with the Mayor, may reject the question; or
- (ii) after consultation with the member who submitted the question, amend the form but not the substance of the question so as to delete the word or words. If the member, submitting the question, does not agree with the CEO's amendment, then the matter may be dealt with behind closed doors, if a majority of members agree that the question should be asked in its original form.
- 2.7 Part 3 business at meetings, order of business, new clause after clause 25, Motions for Reports, Motions for reports must be supported by at least 1/5 of the Council.
- 2.8 Part 3 business at meetings, order of business, new clause after clause 25, Explanation of resolutions of Council. At the end of each Council meeting, and any committee meeting open to the public there will be a fifteen minute segment of explanation of resolutions of council. The chairman will be responsible for the conduct of the public explanation time. Questions may only relate to decisions made at that meeting.
- 2.9 Part 4 Conduct of Meetings, Order of Speakers, new clause 32 (1), The chairman is to call speakers to a substantive motion in the following order:
  - (a) The mover to state the motion;
  - (b) A seconder to the motion:
  - (c) The mover to speak to the motion;
  - (d) The seconder to speak to the motion;
  - (e) A speaker against the motion;
  - (f) A speaker for the motion;
  - (g) Other speakers against and for the motion, alternating in view, if any;
  - (h) Mover takes right of reply which closes debate.
- 2.10 Part 4 Conduct of Meetings, Order of Speakers, new clause 32 (2), The chairman is to call speakers to motion dealing with the recommendation of a committee or working group in the following order:
  - (a) The chairperson of the committee or working group;
  - (b) A seconder to the motion:
  - (c) The mover to speak to the motion;
  - (d) The seconder to speak to the motion;
  - (e) A speaker against the motion;
  - (f) A speaker for the motion;
  - (g) Other speakers against and for the motion, alternating in view, if any;
  - (h) Mover takes right of reply which closes debate.

The chairperson of the committee or working group may delegate the moving of the motion to another committee member.

Discussion ensued.

It was requested that the vote on the amendment of all members present be recorded:

In favour of the Motion: Crs Ewen-Chappell, Magyar, Nixon, Hollywood and Walker.

Against the Motion: Mayor Bombak, Crs Kadak, Rowlands, Barnett, Wight,

Patterson, Kenworthy, Hurst and Mackintosh.

## **AMENDMENT MOVED Cr Wight, SECONDED Cr Patterson that Council:**

- NOTES the unconfirmed minutes of the Standing Orders Review Committee held on Wednesday, 21 June 2000 forming Attachment 1 to Report CJ162-07/00;
- AMENDS the proposed local law "City of Joondalup Standing Orders Local Law 2000" by only allowing "Motions of which previous notice has been given' to be submitted in order to revoke a previous decision of the Council, the following clauses will need to be amended:
  - (i) Clause 25 subclause 1 be deleted and replaced with:
    - (1) A notice of motion:
      - (a) may be submitted by a member only to revoke a previous decision of Council; and
      - (b) must be submitted in accordance with clause 57.
  - (ii) Clause 25 subclause 2 be deleted and subclauses (3) to (6) inclusive be renumbered (2) to (5) accordingly.
- 3 SUBJECT to the amendments being made in (2) above, that the "City of Joondalup Standing Orders Local Law 2000" forming Attachment 2 to Report CJ162-07/00, be advertised in accordance with Section 3.12 of the Local Government Act 1995, in order to seek public comment.

## Discussion ensued.

The Amendment was Put. There being an equal number of votes, the Mayor exercised his casting vote and declared the Motion CARRIED

It was requested that the vote on the amendment of all members present be recorded:

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Bombak, Crs Mackintosh, Hurst, Kenworthy,

Patterson, Wight and Barnett.

Against the Motion: Crs Rowlands, Walker, Hollywood, Nixon, Magyar, Ewen-

Chappell and Kadak.

The Original Motion, as amended, was Put. There being an equal number of votes, the Mayor exercised his casting vote and declared the Motion CARRIED

It was requested that the vote on the original motion, as amended, of all members present be recorded:

In favour of the Motion: Mayor Bombak, Crs Mackintosh, Hurst, Kenworthy,

Patterson, Wight and Barnett.

Against the Motion: Crs Rowlands, Walker, Hollywood, Nixon, Magyar, Ewen-

Chappell and Kadak.

Appendices 1(a) and (b) refer

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: <u>Attach1abrf110700.pdf</u> <u>Attach1abrf110700.pdf</u>

CJ163 - 07/00

AMENDMENT TO POLICY 2.3.3 - USE OF COMMON SEAL AND THE SIGNATORIES FOR CONTRACT EXECUTION - [18085, 26176, 13399]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 2

### **SUMMARY**

Council, at its meeting held on 27 June 2000, undertook a review of the Corporate Policy Manual. This report requests that further amendments be made to Policy 2.3.3 – Use of Common Seal and the Signatories for Contract Execution.

### **DETAILS**

Council, at its meeting held on 27 June 2000, undertook a review of the Corporate Policy Manual. It has now been noted that further amendments are required to Policy 2.3.3 – Use of Common Seal and the Signatories for Contract Execution.

These amendments are of a minor nature and include:

- minor rewording of Points 1 and 5
- rewording of Point 3 (as this had been a duplication of Point 2)
- inclusion of a definition of "Agreement" and an additional Point 8

MOVED Cr Mackintosh, SECONDED Cr Kadak that Council ADOPTS the amendments to Policy 2.3.3 – Use of Common Seal and the Signatories for Contract Execution as shown on Attachment 1 Report CJ163-07/00.

### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 2 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach2brf110700.pdf

# CJ164 - 07/00 POLICY 3.2.5 – DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR WATERVIEW ESTATE, KINGSLEY – [46869]

WARD - South

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 3

### **SUMMARY**

A draft policy entitled 'Design Guidelines for Waterview Estate, Kingsley' was adopted by Council on 26 April 2000 and made available for advertising for public comment.

The policy provides guidelines, which encourage the integrated development of the estate, promoting a high standard of residential amenity and an interesting and intimate streetscape. The flexibility provided by the guidelines essentially assists prospective purchasers, in that, lot area can be maximised for development.

The advertising period closed on 25 May 2000. Only one submission was received from Masterplan Consultants acting on behalf of the applicant. The submission requests rear setbacks to be varied to allow for zero rear setbacks and the introduction of zero side setbacks.

It is considered that a modification to the rear setback requirement to allow for 2 metre minimum and 3 metre average is acceptable, but that zero setback opportunities are already covered by the provisions of the Codes.

It is recommended that the modified policy be adopted.

### BACKGROUND

Lot No	6 and 7
Street Address	Wanneroo Road
Land Owner	Rockingham Park Pty Ltd and Butte Holdings Pty Ltd
MRS Zoning	Parks and Recreation and Urban
TPS Zoning	Parks and Recreation and Urban Development
Lot Area	1.3795 ha and 1.4563 ha

In July 1999 the Western Australian Planning Commission approved the subdivision of lots 6 and 7 Wanneroo Road, Kingsley into 35 single residential lots ranging in size from 358m2 to 486m2 and two grouped dwelling lots (Page 3 of Attachment 1).

Condition 19 of the subdivision approval requires the subdivider to prepare design guidelines for adoption by the Local Government to control development within the application area. The subject condition is required to be cleared by the City at the time of the clearance stage of the subdivision. The applicant has sought clearance of the subject subdivision.

In the past design guidelines have been formulated for individual subdivisions. From a planning implementation point of view it is considered that formulating design guidelines that are generic in nature, that can be applied to all development within the municipality, is the preferable approach. Given the time constraints in this case Council officers have formulated

design guidelines for the subject subdivision, which are intended to be adopted as policy. The policy can then be absorbed by the generic design guidelines once these have been adopted.

At the Council meeting of 26 April 2000 the draft policy was adopted to enable it be advertised for public comment in accordance with Clause 5.11 of the Scheme.

### **DETAILS**

## **Current Proposal or Issue**

Development is generally controlled by the Residential Planning Codes (Codes) which were gazetted on 30 January 1985 in the form of a Statement of Planning Policy No.1 under the provision of Section 5AA of the Town Planning and Development Act. The Codes are the basis for the control of residential development within local authorities throughout the state and provide prescribed detail with respect to setbacks, open space, and frontages.

The draft policy (Attachment 1), entitled 'Design Guidelines for Waterview Estate, Kingsley' modifies some code provisions and addresses some additional issues. Further, it aims to provide guidelines which encourage the integrated development of the precinct, promote a high standard of residential amenity and an interesting and intimate streetscape. The policy aims to provide for flexibility in design of dwellings on the lots. The policy offers the following variations:

- Reduced front setback from 6 metres to 4 metres average with a minimum of 3 metres. This provides for an intimate streetscape and maximises the lot area.
- Reduced rear setback from 4 metre average to 3 metre minimum.
- Reduction in the private open space requirement for lots less than 400m2 to 40% from 50%. This provides for greater site cover given the small lot size.
- Fencing to primary street frontages being a maximum height of 1.8m, designed to be visually permeable, two thirds of the fencing should be 'open in nature' and a maximum solid portion of 750 mm measured from ground level.

### **Relevant Legislation**

Clause 5.11 of the City of Joondalup's Town Planning Scheme No. 1 allows Council to prepare planning policies relating to planning or development within the Scheme Area. Under the City's Town Planning Scheme a policy shall only become operative after the following steps have been taken:

- 1. Draft policy to be prepared and adopted by Council.
- 2. Draft policy to be advertised for public comments for at least 21 days.
- 3. Council to review draft policy in the light of any submissions made and then resolve to either finally adopt the draft policy with or without modification; or not proceed with draft policy.
- 4. Notice of final adoption of policy to be published in a newspaper circulating in area.

## **Advertising and Summary**

The draft policy was advertised for public comment from 4 May 2000 to 25 May 2000. Only one submission was received from Masterplan Consultants acting on behalf of the applicant. The submission requests the following changes:

### Rear Setback

- Provision for the 3 metre minimum rear setback to be varied in appropriate circumstances, for example allowing a zero rear setback.
- Outbuildings being specifically excluded from the 3 metre rear setback requirement.
- Allow for zero rear setback for carports and garages.

### Side Setback

- Suggest inclusion of the following "Side Setback: A limited number of lots may be
  developed with zero side setback as shown on the estate plan attached. Side setback
  for all other lots within the estate is to be in accordance with the requirements of the
  Codes."
- This allows for the narrow lots to be developed with zero lot lines providing the best possible house design for the landowner.

### COMMENT

#### Issues

With respect to the submission the following comments are provided:

### Rear Setback

- A variation to the requirement is proposed to enable the rear setback to be averaged, thus providing flexibility in design with a minimum of 2 metres and an average of 3 metres. The Residential Planning Codes already provide for a single house to have a zero rear setback so no further modification is necessary.
- Outbuildings are to be specifically excluded from the 3 metre rear setback requirement.
- All structures are to be setback 3 metres from the rear of lots 35, 36 and 37 to accommodate a future access way and allow for adequate maneuverability and visibility. Effectively this is a zero rear setback for carports and garages.

## Side Setback

• It is acknowledged that incorporation of zero side setbacks allows for flexibility in design on narrow lots. The Codes include provisions relating to zero side setbacks for single dwellings. Accordingly there is no need for such provisions to be included within the policy, or for the location of zero side setbacks to be indicated on the plan.

## **Assessment and Reasons for Recommendation**

With respect to the submission the draft policy has been modified to include a variation to the rear setback, providing flexibility in design. The proposed policy will adequately control the detailed development of houses on the lots within the Waterview Estate and can be administered as part of the planning and building licence approval process. The proposed policy provides guidelines, which encourage the integrated development of the precinct, promote a high standard of residential amenity and an interesting and intimate streetscape. The flexibility provided by the guidelines essentially assist prospective purchasers, in that, lot

area can be maximised for development therefore resulting in an improved standard of development. In order for the above to occur, it is recommended that Council adopt the modified attached policy.

MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Mackintosh that Council, in accordance with Clause 5.11 of the City of Joondalup Town Planning Scheme No. 1, MODIFIES and ADOPTS Policy 3.2.5 - 'Design Guidelines for Waterview Estate, Kingsley' attached to Report CJ164-07/00.

### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 3 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach3brf110700.pdf

## FINANCE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

CJ165 - 07/00 SCHEDULE OF DOCUMENTS EXECUTED BY

MEANS OF AFFIXING THE COMMON SEAL -

[15876]

WARD - All

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 4

### **SUMMARY**

The following is a list of documents sealed under the Common Seal of the City of Joondalup from 18.05.00 to 15.06.00:

Document: Withdrawal of Caveat

Parties: City of Joondalup and Sizzler Australia P/L Description: Lot 1 (46) Gwendoline Drive, Beldon

Date: 18.05.00

Document: Deed

Parties: City of Joondalup and D and M Catellani Description: Lot 3 (8) Dugdale Street, Warwick

Date: 25.05.00

Document: Deed

Parties: City of Joondalup and Sarah Marion Birch Description: Lot 1 (46) Gwendoline Drive, Beldon

Date: 12.06.00

Document: Section 70A Notification

Parties: City of Joondalup and Mrs Maria Toncich

Description: Lot 125 (32) Ross Avenue, Sorrento

Date: 12.06.00

Document: Local Law

Parties: City of Joondalup

Description: Amendment Local Law 2000

Date: 15.06.00

Document: Copyright Agreement

Parties: City of Joondalup and John Forbes
Description: Local Studies – Oral History

Date: 15.06.00

Document: Copyright Agreement

Parties: City of Joondalup and Roberta Mary Murphy

Description: Local Studies – Oral History

Date: 15.06.00

MOVED Cr Wight, SECONDED Cr Walker that the Schedule of Documents executed by means of affixing the Common Seal be NOTED.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

CJ166 - 07/00 SETTING OF MEETING TIMES – BRIEFING

**SESSIONS** – [08122]

WARD - All

## **SUMMARY**

Council currently holds Briefing Sessions on the first and third Tuesday of the month, commencing at 6.30 pm. As Citizenship Ceremonies are scheduled on the same night as Briefing Session, it is recommended that Briefing Sessions commence at the later time of 7.00 pm to allow elected members greater involvement in the Citizenship Ceremonies.

## **BACKGROUND**

The Council is currently trialling two Council meetings per month which are supported by two informal briefing sessions as part of its decision making process. Council, at its meeting held on 23 May 2000, resolved to:

- "1 AGREE to hold two Ordinary Council meetings per month on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month as per the meeting schedule detailed in (3) below;
- 2 AGREE to hold two informal briefing sessions per month, that are open to the public, on the first and third Tuesdays of each month commencing at 6.30 pm;

3 SET the following meeting dates for the City of Joondalup to be held at the Council Chamber, Joondalup Civic Centre, Boas Avenue, Joondalup, commencing at 7.00 pm;

Month	Briefing Sessions	Council
July 2000	Tuesday 4 July 2000 Tuesday 18 July 2000	Tuesday 11 July 2000 Tuesday 25 July 2000
August 2000	Tuesday 1 August 2000 Tuesday 15 August 2000	Tuesday 8 August 2000 Tuesday 22 August 2000
September 2000	Tuesday 5 September 2000 Tuesday 19 September 2000	Tuesday 12 September 2000 Tuesday 26 September 2000
October 2000	Tuesday 3 October 2000 Tuesday 17 October 2000	Tuesday 10 October 2000 Tuesday 24 October 2000
November 2000	Tuesday 7 November 2000 Tuesday 21 November 2000	Tuesday 14 November 2000 Tuesday 28 November 2000
December 2000	Tuesday 12 December 2000	Tuesday 19 December 2000
January 2001	Recess	Recess
February 2001	Tuesday 6 February 2001 Tuesday 20 February 2001	Tuesday 13 February 2001 Tuesday 27 February 2001
March 2001	Tuesday 6 March 2001 Tuesday 20 March 2001	Tuesday 13 March 2001 Tuesday 27 March 2001
April 2001	Tuesday 3 April 2001 Tuesday 17 April 2001	Tuesday 10 April 2001 Tuesday 24 April 2001

<sup>4</sup> in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995, GIVE local public notice of the meeting dates as detailed in (3) above."

### **DETAIL**

At the Briefing Session held on 4 July 2000, the issue of elected members' involvement in Citizenship Ceremonies was raised. As Citizenship Ceremonies are held on Tuesdays, commencing at 5.30 pm, it is considered that insufficient time is allowed for elected members to attend both a Citizenship Ceremony and Briefing Session. It is recommended that commencement of Briefing Sessions be altered to 7.00 pm for a trial period.

### **OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION** That Council:

AGREES to amend its decision of 23 May 2000, and holds two informal briefing sessions per month, that are open to the public, on the first and third Tuesdays of each month commencing at 7.00 pm, to be held on:

Tuesday 4 July 2000

Tuesday 1 August 2000

Tuesday 1 August 2000

Tuesday 5 September 2000

Tuesday 1 September 2000

Tuesday 1 October 2000

Tuesday 7 November 2000

Tuesday 21 November 2000

Tuesday 12 December 2000

Tuesday 4 July 2000

Tuesday 6 February 2001 Tuesday 20 February 2001

Tuesday 6 March 2001 Tuesday 20 March 2001

Tuesday 3 April 2001 Tuesday 17 April 2001

2 GIVES local public notice of the meeting dates as detailed in (1) above.

## MOVED Cr Magyar, SECONDED Cr Ewen-Chappell that Council:

AGREES to amend its decision of 23 May 2000, and holds two informal briefing sessions per month, that are open to the public, on the first and third Tuesdays of each month commencing at 6.00 pm, to be held on:

Tuesday 18 July 2000

raesaay raary 2000	raesaay 10 vary 2000
Tuesday 1 August 2000	Tuesday 15 August 2000
Tuesday 5 September 2000	Tuesday 19 September 2000
Tuesday 3 October 2000	Tuesday 17 October 2000
Tuesday 7 November 2000	Tuesday 21 November 2000
Tuesday 12 December 2000	
Tuesday 6 February 2001	Tuesday 20 February 2001
Tuesday 6 March 2001	Tuesday 20 March 2001
Tuesday 3 April 2001	Tuesday 17 April 2001

- 2 GIVES local public notice of the meeting dates as detailed in (1) above;
- 3 HOLDS Citizenship Ceremonies on Wednesdays.

Discussion ensued.

It was requested that the vote on the motion of all members present be recorded:

In favour of the Motion: Crs Kadak, Ewen-Chappell, Magyar, Nixon, Hollywood and

Walker.

Against the Motion: Mayor Bombak, Crs Rowlands, Barnett, Wight, Patterson,

Kenworthy, Hurst and Mackintosh.

## **MOVED Cr Wight, SECONDED Cr Patterson that Council:**

AGREES to amend its decision of 23 May 2000, and holds two informal briefing sessions per month, that are open to the public, on the first and third Tuesdays of each month commencing at 7.00 pm, to be held on:

Tuesday 4 July 2000 Tuesday 18 July 2000

Tuesday 1 August 2000 Tuesday 15 August 2000

Tuesday 5 September 2000 Tuesday 19 September 2000

Tuesday 3 October 2000 Tuesday 17 October 2000

Tuesday 7 November 2000 Tuesday 21 November 2000

**Tuesday 12 December 2000** 

Tuesday 6 February 2001 Tuesday 20 February 2001

Tuesday 6 March 2001 Tuesday 20 March 2001

Tuesday 3 April 2001 Tuesday 17 April 2001

2 GIVES local public notice of the meeting dates as detailed in (1) above.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

CJ167 - 07/00 CITY OF COCKBURN INQUIRY - [02004]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 5

### **SUMMARY**

The purpose of this report is to summarise and provide some information on the findings and issues raised by the Ministerial Inquiry into the City of Cockburn. (Cockburn Inquiry) More specifically, the report aims to identify any matters that could be of interest to the City and relevant to local government generally.

### **BACKGROUND**

An inquiry was initiated by the Executive Director of Local Government, into several areas of operation of the Council of the City of Cockburn. That inquiry identified concerns of sufficient magnitude for the Minister for Local Government to suspended the Council and appoint Commissioners on 13 April 1999, in preparation for a Ministerial Inquiry.

The Ministerial inquiry was conducted by Mr Neil Frederick Douglas, Legal Practitioner. Mr Douglas is a principal of the law firm Minter Ellison, which has a long association of providing legal services to the local government industry. Details of the inquiry and his findings are outlined in a three volume report dated April 2000. Copies of the report are located in the Councillor's Reading Room for information.

While the matters investigated and reported on relate specifically to the activities of the City of Cockburn, some recommendations if implemented, will have an impact on local governments generally. It was also considered that other local governments could learn from the Cockburn experience.

A review of the procedures that apply to the areas of concern raised in the Cockburn Inquiry would be the minimum expectation for local governments to undertake.

### **DETAILS**

In broad terms, the Cockburn Inquiry was initiated as a result of complaints and concerns with that City's handling of the following matters:

- (1) Tendering and awarding of contracts;
- (2) Zoning and subdivision of land;
- (3) Application and Payment of Public Open Space contributions to sub division participants. (Section 20C Town Planning and Development Act)
- (4) Provision of responses to external reviews; eg Ombudsman
- (5) Financial Interest and Interest Affecting Impartiality

Some of the issues that arose from the inquiry are specific to one of the above areas, while other issues relate to several areas. Subsequent issues were identified in the inquiry process and have been mentioned in the Inquiry report.

(1) The Tender Process and Awarding Contracts

The tender process applied for awarding cleaning contracts at Cockburn, was considered to be flawed, as staff incorrectly interpreted and applied the Tender Regulations 1983. (Tender Regulations 1983 were repealed on 1 July 1996) Application of the financial limit on contracts appeared to be misunderstood. Extension of contracts beyond the period advertised was also a concern.

In addition, it appeared that staff and elected members were not aware of their respective roles, responsibilities or the rationale for the tender requirements, that:

- (i) the tender process is fair and transparent;
- (ii) tenders are assessed and decisions made on the basis and only on the basis of the advertised criteria, and
- (iii) the overriding objective is to determine which of the tenders is most advantageous to the City.

The inquiry report indicated that there was an underlying need for the Tender Regulations 1983 and requirements to be clear, documented, accessible and understood by both staff and elected members. It was also considered important to have effective processes in place that ensured any tender was above board and in keeping with regulations.

## (2) and (3) Zoning and Subdivision of Land /Application of Public Open Space Monies

The investigation covered three separate subdivisions. Concerns included the planning process applied to rezoning of land for subdivision and the application of monies contributed and set aside for purchase of land for public open space under section 20C of the Town Planning and Development Act. It was considered that relevant legislation and procedures need to be understood, be clearly outlined, documented and followed. Where legal advice was obtained on a matter, it should be accepted and actioned. If unclear the advice should be clarified or alternative advice obtained.

## (4) Provision of responses to external reviews; eg Ombudsman

The inquiry recommended that Cockburn develop, establish and implement procedures to ensure its responses to inquiries and findings are consistent with the standards of accountability expected of an external agency and those procedures govern the responses to other reviews including external reviews. This recommendation evolved due to criticism of the CEO from the Ombudsman's Office and the Department of Local Government over failure to adequately respond to questions and accusations.

Regardless of whether or not the criticism of the CEO was warranted, this raises an issue that is fundamentally wrong in the progress of an inquiry from the Ombudsman's Office to a local government. Correspondence is currently addressed to the Mayor or President, Chief Elected Representative of the local government, whereas it should be addressed to the CEO and a copy provided to the Mayor. Unlike Government Departments where the Minister is responsible for the operations of his Department, the CEO is responsible for the operations of a local government. In cases where a Mayor has a falling out with the CEO, correspondence may deliberately not be passed onto the CEO. This can be avoided if the correspondence is addressed to the CEO and a copy forwarded to the Mayor or President as the case may be.

## (5) Financial Interest and Interest Affecting Impartiality (Non Financial)

## The inquiry recommended that:

Members who have a non financial interest in a matter before a local government be encouraged through training and guidelines from the Department of Local Government, to refrain from:

participating in the decision making process;

voting on the matter, and

having anything to do with the matter in their roles as elected members.

It was also recommended that at Council or committee meetings the elected members be given the power to decide whether a fellow member who has declared a non financial interest should be entitled to participate in the discussion or vote on that matter. This is similar to what applies to a member who declares a financial interest. In instances where it is deemed the member's interest is trivial, insignificant or common to significant numbers of electors or ratepayers, the member may be permitted by the meeting, to participate in the decision making process on that matter.

The inquiry further recommended that:

Members who have an interest in a matter before the local government, should in relation to that matter:

be restricted in their access to the local government's employees and elected members; and

have no greater right than a member of the public to obtain access to documents, or to use the resources of the local government.

Even though a council member may declare a financial interest in a matter, leave the chamber when it is discussed and take no active role in the voting process, they still have access to any legal advice or proposed strategy that may be put forward to progress the matter. They are therefore able to take action to effectively negate the Council's strategy. The opportunity is also available to submit correspondence that requires the Council to seek further legal advice. While still having access to that advice they can obtain free legal advice and possibly a far better outcome for themselves.

Again, this is a difficult situation and can be expected to receive careful examination by the Department of Local Government. Until such time as a member declares an interest in a matter they must be provided with all agenda information and are expected to evaluate and vote fully participate in the determination process. It is expected that there would be significant difficulties in managing a process to achieve what is recommended. Certainly there would have to be some legislative change to facilitate the process.

### OTHER SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

## Other Legislation Changes

The Cockburn Inquiry has recommended a series of legislative changes be made to facilitate the smoother operation of future similar inquiries. Associated recommendations include provision of adequate protection of staff from personal liability; the prohibition on improper use of information by staff engaged by the inquiry; the right of witnesses to choose an oath or affirmation without having to give reason for their choice and include the right to legal representation in defined circumstances.

Other recommended legislative changes include an addition to the specific category of "closely associated " persons, being a person for whom legal services are being provided by an elected member.

Another amendment recommended is to extend the determination of whether a Council member or employee has a financial interest in a matter before a committee or Council, by including consideration as to there being reasonable expectation of a financial gain or loss due to either:

- (a) the way the matter might be dealt with by the council or committee; and
- (b) the way the matter might be dealt with by the elected member or employee.

### Codes of Conduct

The Local Government Act 1995 requires each Council to have a Code of Conduct and include certain matters in that code as specified in Administrative Regulations. It was found that the City of Cockburn had amended their code of conduct to delete a "conflict of interest" provision and "undue influence" provision.

Compliance with a Council's Code of Conduct is voluntary. However, there is an inherent expectation that once the code is adopted, Council members and staff will comply with the provisions of their Code. Willingness and commitment to compliance is taken as an indication of a person's ethics and professionalism.

There is a need for a strong commitment to comply with the Council's Code of Conduct. While appropriate measures are in place to ensure staff comply, Council members currently do so on a completely voluntary basis. There is no current process to enforce compliance. This is one issue that the inquiry recommends the Department of Local Government review to make appropriate aspects of codes of conduct enforceable.

As the full impact of the Cockburn Inquiry progresses, there is no doubt likely to be other issues that are followed up and will impact on local government. The frequency of inquiries into local governments and adverse findings, does little to instill confidence in local government, that residents and ratepayers deserve. It is therefore imperative that Council members and their administrations work together to remove improper conduct.

### **COMMENT**

The findings and recommendations outlined in the "Report of the Inquiry into the City of Cockburn" give the impression of a local government functioning under immense pressure largely brought about by the actions of some senior elected members.

The findings of the inquiry indicated that some elected members frequently applied undue and improper influence on staff in order to gain an advantage or achieve a particular outcome they wanted. As previously mentioned the Council's Code of Conduct was amended to delete an "undue influence" provision. Simply deleting the provision does not make undue or improper influence any more acceptable or legal.

There is also identified, the need for effective administrative procedures to be in place.

The Cockburn Inquiry has highlighted the need for elected members to:

- seek, accept and act on professional and legal advice;
- make informed decisions, based on factual advice/written reports;
- comply with the financial interest provisions of the Act;
- have a code of conduct that complies with the requirements of the Act and Regulations and observe the Council's Code of Conduct;
- know the extent of ones authority and avoid misuse of authority, through undue influence/coercion:
- be aware of the Anti Corruption Commission Act 1988 and responsibilities of staff under that Act:
- be aware of the role and responsibilities of elected members.

The Cockburn Inquiry has highlighted the need for staff to:

- know the legislation applicable to their area of expertise and provide sound accurate advice;
- comply with the financial interest provisions of the Act;
- observe the Council's Code of Conduct;
- be aware of the Anti Corruption Commission Act 1988 and their responsibilities under that Act;
- ensure that processes are well documented, include effective checking mechanisms and appropriate training is available to Council members and staff;
- ensure relevant information is readily available to Council members and staff;

### LOCAL GOVERNMENT INDUSTRY POSITION

The Western Australian Municipal Association (WAMA), Department of Local Government and the Institute of Municipal Management, were contacted to ascertain what action if any they proposed to take in relation to the outcomes of the Cockburn Inquiry.

WAMA indicated that they do not intend at this stage, to formally assess the report or produce any conclusions on behalf of the local government industry. The inquiry and its outcomes were considered to be more in the province of the Department of Local Government.

The Department of Local Government indicated that they are in the process of evaluating the recommendations and the issues identified in the report. The Department was conscious of the fact that the report had been referred to the Department of Public Prosecutions (DPP) for evaluation and possible legal action against persons involved in the Cockburn Inquiry. It was therefore considered not appropriate to make comment until such time as the proposed action if any by the DPP was known.

The Institute of Municipal Management (IMM) proposes to gather information from officers called before inquiries, lawyers who have represented officers, local governments and other parties involved in the process. The Divisional Council of IMM is seeking to identify and define areas of concern, then participate in a review of the inquiry process to ensure officers rights and interests are fairly represented in any future inquiry.

### CITY OF JOONDALUP POSITION

It is considered that the City of Joondalup is well placed with those general local government matters that have been raised as concerns in the Cockburn Inquiry.

## The City has:

- (a) in place efficient and effective processes for ensuring the Tender Regulations are complied with. These include review and checking mechanisms by persons not directly involved in the tender process. Advice on the requirements for tender and process to be followed, are readily available from the Manager of Contracts.
- (b) adopted and applies a Code of Conduct that is in keeping with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulations.
- (c) a Complaints Handling process in place with dedicated staff to ensure all complaints, regardless of who they are from or subject matter, are responded to with factual information and within the designated time;
- (d) developed a draft Standing Orders Local Law based on the need for the Council to be provided with appropriate reports and information on which to make informed decisions;
- (e) included in the draft Standing Orders Local Law, provision that interests that may affect impartiality must be declared;
- (f) a well functioning Council supported by highly qualified, capable and professional staff;
- (g) sound administrative systems and processes in place that meet legislative requirements;
- (h) supported and provided opportunity for training of Council members in all areas impacting on their role;
- (i) progressed to be a well recognised for its innovation and leadership in the local government industry.

## MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Wight that Council:

- NOTES the following City's current position in regards to those general local government matters as raised in the Cockburn Inquiry, being:
  - (a) in place efficient and effective processes for ensuring the Tender Regulations are complied with. These include review and checking mechanisms by persons not directly involved in the tender process. Advice on the requirements for tender and process to be followed, are readily available from the Manager of Contracts;
  - (b) adopted and applies a Code of Conduct that is in keeping with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulations;

- (c) a Complaints Handling process in place with dedicated staff to ensure all complaints, regardless of who they are from or subject matter, are responded to with factual information and within the designated time;
- (d) developed a draft Standing Orders Local Law based on the need for the Council to be provided with appropriate reports and information on which to make informed decisions;
- (e) included in the draft Standing Orders Local Law, provision that interests that may affect impartiality must be declared;
- (f) a well functioning Council supported by highly qualified, capable and professional staff;
- (g) sound administrative systems and processes in place that meet legislative requirements;
- (h) supported and provided opportunity for training of Council members in all areas impacting on their role;
- (i) progressed to be a well recognised for its innovation and leadership in the local government industry;
- 2 SUPPORTS a change in procedure by the Ombudsman's Office in addressing correspondence on any administrative matters to the Chief Executive Officer of the local government, with a copy forwarded to the Mayor as the case may be;
- ADVISES the Department of Local Government, Western Australian Municipal Association and the Institute of Municipal Management that it would support a review of the existing legislation relating to the need to treat interests that may affect a person's impartiality in the same manner as the Local Government Act 1995 deals with interests of a financial nature.

Discussion ensued.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

CJ168 - 07/00 VEHICLE TENDER 99-99/00 - PURCHASE OF TWO EIGHT TONNE TIPPERS – [43843]

WARD - All

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 6

## SUMMARY

Included in the City's Draft 2000/01 Heavy Vehicle Replacement Programme budget are funds for the purchase of two 8 tonne tip trucks with the trade of the following vehicles:

- Plant Number 96126 Isuzu FTS 700 tip truck allocated to Operations Services
- Plant Number 96503 Mitsubishi FM 517HS tip truck allocated to Operations Services

Funding of the shortfall is from the Heavy Vehicle Replacement Reserve. The purchase of these vehicles was carried forward from the 1999/2000 programme.

The CEO has delegated authority to accept tenders up to a figure of \$100,000. However, as Tender 099-99/00 exceeds that figure, it requires approval of the Council.

This report recommends the purchase of two Mitsubishi FM 658 HV tip trucks from Skipper Trucks together with the disposal of vehicles #96126 and #96503, for a net change over figure of \$102,594.

### **BACKGROUND**

Tender number 099-99/00 pertaining to these acquisitions was advertised on Wednesday 24<sup>th</sup> May 2000 and closed on Tuesday June 13th, 2000. The two vehicles to be traded were presented for inspection on June 1st, and were evaluated by all prospective tenderers.

Due to the tender evaluation process, including the assessment against tender specifications, these vehicles missed the close of year and therefore were re-budgeted in this financial year

### **DETAILS**

There were three submissions received for the supply and trade of two 8 tonne tip trucks as per Tender 099-99/00, and one submission for outright purchase of the trade vehicles. Details of all submissions are shown on Attachment A.

Each tender specified the time of delivery for the trucks. Only Skipper Trucks could offer immediate supply of the cab/chassis, which is the truck without body. The tipper body then has to be manufactured by a sub contracted body builder. Construction of the tipper bodies would commence from the time of truck availability and is expected to take three weeks.

The specifications for the new supply requested a gearbox providing 10 forward speeds. This was requested by Operations Services so as to provide a wide range in gearing to assist in choosing the optimum drive ratio for the conditions and load required to be carried by the vehicle.

The only vehicle to conform to the specification, was the Mitsubishi FM 658 HV as tendered by Skipper Trucks. The Isuzu FVR 950 was offered with a 7-speed gearbox and the Nissan UD PK220 offered with a 9-speed gearbox. Both of these units were considered as not conforming to the specifications and are therefore not recommended for purchase.

The change over cost as tendered by Skipper Trucks for supply of the Mitsubishi was found to be the second lowest after the tender from AV Truck Services for the supply of the Nissan LID

However, the difference is only 2% and relates to the values of the trade vehicles.

AV Truck Services declined to purchase the trade vehicles outright.

The highest offer for outright purchase of the trade vehicles was from Raytone Motors, however its tender did not have a signed tender form and under the General Conditions of Tendering has to be declared non conforming and could not be accepted.

Consideration was given to not trading the two trucks at this time and retendering for their disposal in August 2000. However, it is expected that the value of used truck values will drop after the introduction of the GST and together with the cost of re advertising, would not achieve any additional financial benefit for the City.

It is recommended that the tender for the supply of two Mitsubishi FM 658 HV tip trucks from Skipper Trucks together with the disposal of vehicles #96126 and #96503, for a net change over figure of \$102,594, be accepted.

The tender from Howard Porter Pty Ltd was non conformant as it was a quotation for the supply and fit of a hoist only therefore not complying with the full tender specifications.

### **COMMENT/FUNDING**

Based on the Skipper Trucks tender the financial position is:

Plant	Recommended	Budget	Budget
Number	Tender- Changeover	Provision	Surplus/(Shortfall)
96126	\$45,937	\$51,232	\$5,295
96503	\$56,657	\$51,232	(\$5,425)
Total	\$102,594	\$102,464	(\$130)

Accepting this, the overall Draft 2000/01 budget shortfall on tender 099-99/00 is \$130.

MOVED Cr Ewen-Chappell, SECONDED Cr Rowlands that Council in accordance with the General Conditions of Tendering ACCEPTS the tender from Skipper Trucks for the supply of two Mitsubishi FM658 HV tip trucks and trade of vehicles #96126 and #96503 at a net change over figure of \$102,594 as detailed in Tender 099-99/00.

## The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 4 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach4brf110700.pdf

# CJ169 - 07/00 REGISTER OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY – [07032]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 7

#### **SUMMARY**

Section 5.46 of the Local Government Act 1995 requires the Chief Executive Officer to maintain a Register of Delegated Authority. This report documents the delegated authority exercised by the Chief Executive Officer for the month of June 2000.

#### BACKGROUND

Part 5 of the Local Government Act 1995 empowers a local government to delegate many of its powers and duties to the Chief Executive Officer.

Section 5.46 requires the Chief Executive Officer to maintain a register and record of delegations and to review the delegations once every financial year.

# Register of, and records relevant to, delegations to Chief Executive Officer and employees

- **5.46** (1) The Chief Executive Officer is to keep a register of the delegations made under this Division to the Chief Executive Officer and to employees.
  - (2) At least once every financial year, delegations made under this Division are to be reviewed by the delegator.
  - (3) A person to whom a power or duty is delegated under this Act is to keep records
    in accordance with regulations in relation to the exercise of the power or the discharge of the duty.

#### **DETAILS**

The Register documenting the delegated authority exercised by the Chief Executive Officer for the month of June 2000 are shown as Attachment A.

MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Wight that Council NOTES the Register documenting the delegated authority exercised by the Chief Executive Officer, for the month of June 2000.

#### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 13 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach13brf110700.pdf

# CJ170 - 07/00 MINUTES OF THE CONSERVATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 22 JUNE 2000 – [12168]

WARD - All

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 8

#### **SUMMARY**

A special meeting of the Conservation Advisory Committee was held on 22 June 2000 and the minutes of the meeting are submitted for noting by Council.

The meeting held on 6 June 2000 was discontinued due to the failure to achieve a quorum. The minutes of the previous meeting held on 5 May 2000 were not ratified and will be held in abeyance until the formulation of a newly elected committee. The minutes of this meeting were noted by Council at its meeting dated 23 May 2000.

## **DETAILS**

The minutes of the special meeting of the Conservation Advisory Committee held on 22 June 2000 are included as Attachment 1.

The following motion was put and carried:

Moved Cr J Hughes, Seconded J Wood, that the Conservation Advisory Committee splits into two groups representing the City of Joondalup and the City of Wanneroo.

### **MOVED Cr Magyar, SECONDED Cr Ewen-Chappell that Council:**

- NOTES the unconfirmed minutes of the special meeting of the Conservation Advisory Committee held on 22 June 2000;
- NOTES that the Conservation Advisory Committee meeting held on 6 June 2000 was discontinued due to the failure to achieve a quorum;
- NOTES that the unconfirmed minutes from the previous meeting of the Conservation Advisory Committee held on 2 May 2000 will be held in abeyance, until the formulation of a newly elected committee representing the City of Joondalup;
- ENDORSES the recommendation that the Conservation Advisory Committee be split into two groups representing the City of Joondalup and the City of Wanneroo.

Discussion ensued.

## The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 5 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach5brf110700.pdf

# CJ171 - 07/00 MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING – 21 JUNE 2000 - [00906]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 9

#### **SUMMARY**

A meeting of the Environmental Advisory Committee was held on 21 June 2000 and the unconfirmed minutes of the informal meeting are submitted to the Council for information.

#### **BACKGROUND**

A meeting of the Environmental Advisory Committee was held on 21 June 2000. However, as the quorum for the meeting was not reached, informal discussions were held. Minutes of this informal discussion are submitted to Council for information.

#### **DETAILS**

The main items of business considered during the informal discussions of the Environmental Advisory Committee held on 21 June 2000 included a discussion paper on Local Agenda 21, and organisational approaches towards environmental issues within the City of Joondalup. The second report presented options available for the Environmental Advisory Committee to renew the committee membership, particularly in the light of the resignation of one of the community representatives. The discussion paper also considered options for a revised committee reporting structure, workload prioritisation and communication approach.

The Environmental Advisory Committee seeks to renew the community representatives of the committee. The need to reassess the membership of the committee has arisen due to the resignation of two community representatives and the non-attendance of community members. The preferred approach suggested by the committee is to publicly advertise for nominations from interested community representatives with technical expertise in environmental issues. In addition, the committee seeks to appoint City of Joondalup staff Mr John Goldsmith (Local Agenda 21 Officer) and Mr James Kirton (Manager Organisational and Strategic Development) to the committee.

The discussions papers considered at the committee meeting will be revised and expanded upon, for subsequent presentation to Council.

The minutes of the informal meeting of the Environmental Advisory Committee held on 21 June 2000 are included as Attachment A.

The next meeting of the Environmental Advisory Committee will be held at 5.30 pm on 19 July 2000.

# **MOVED Cr Magyar, SECONDED Cr Nixon that Council:**

- 1 NOTES the unconfirmed minutes of the informal meeting of the Environmental Advisory Committee held on 21 June 2000 forming Attachment A to Report CJ171-07/00;
- 2 ENDORSES the advertising for nominations from interested community representatives to become members of the Environmental Advisory Committee;
- 3 APPOINTS Mr John Goldsmith and Mr James Kirton to the committee:
- 4 ACCEPTS the resignation of Mr G De Piazzi and D James from the Environmental Advisory Committee, and thanks them for their involvement and contribution to the committee.

The Motion was Put and

CARRIED BY AN ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

Appendix 6 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach6brf110700.pdf

CJ172 - 07/00 MINUTES OF JOONDALUP YOUTH ADVISORY COUNCILS MEETINGS – MAY, 2000 – [38245]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 10

#### **SUMMARY**

Meetings of the Joondalup North and South Youth Advisory Councils were held on 15 and 31 May, 2000 and the minutes of both meetings are submitted for noting by Council.

## **DETAILS**

The minutes of the Joondalup North Youth Advisory Council held on 15 May, 2000 at Anchors Youth Centre are included as Attachment 1.

The minutes of the Joondalup South Youth Advisory Council held at Joondalup Library on 31 May, 2000 are included as Attachment 2.

No action is required from these minutes.

MOVED Cr Kadak, SECONDED Cr Walker that Council NOTES the confirmed minutes of:

- the Joondalup North Youth Advisory Council meeting held on 15 May, 2000 forming Attachment 1 to Report CJ172-07/00;
- 2 the Joondalup South Youth Advisory Council meeting held on 31 May, 2000 forming Attachment 2 to Report CJ172-07/00.

#### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendices 7(a) and (b) refer

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: <u>Attach7abrf110700.pdf</u> <u>Attach7bbrf110700.pdf</u>

CJ173 - 07/00 HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE NORTH METROPOLITAN TRANSPORT BROKERAGE PILOT PROJECT - [16813] [01075]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 11

# SUMMARY

The Home and Community Care program (HACC), which is a joint State/Commonwealth funded program, funds some transport services for aged and disabled people. In 1998, the Health Department concluded its review into HACC transport services in the North Metropolitan Region. The region encompasses the local government authorities of the Cities of Wanneroo, Joondalup and Stirling, and the Towns of Cambridge and Vincent.

The outcome of the review was to establish the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot. The Brokerage is to provide a superior transport service to clients by pooling the resources of participating agencies and by using taxis. Approximately 166 City of Joondalup clients are provided with 6,000 services a year to enable them to attend hospital treatments, therapy and medical appointments. Twenty eight volunteer drivers assist the Council in this achievement.

This report updates Council on the progress of the Transport Brokerage. It also outlines the enormous benefits for residents of the City that will result from the Brokerage, provides details of the opportunity the Brokerage offers to address the various unsatisfactory practices that are currently occurring in maintaining the City's existing service, and seeks:

• Council agreement to participate in the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project; and

• Council agreement to the transfer of \$57,875 (70 percent) of the City's HACC Transport Grant for 2000/2001 to the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot for the pilot year of 2000/2001. The mechanism for this would be for the City to receive only \$24,803 (30 percent of the grant) and for HACC to pay the balance of the grant (\$57,875) to the Pilot Project.

#### **BACKGROUND**

### **Current Service**

The City provides 6000 HACC transport services per year to approximately 166 residents, to assist them to attend hospital treatments, therapy and medical appointments. There is a greater need for this service than can be provided with current HACC funding levels. The City's records show that residents are making approximately 780 service requests per year that can not be met within the City's existing HACC transport service.

In some other HACC transport agencies in the North Metropolitan Region those residents who are frail aged and disabled are also provided with HACC transport to shopping and social activities. The City is unable to meet such needs.

The City's service is also restricted to operating only during business hours. There is limited choice over travel times. Clients attending hospital appointments often must wait several hours for a return trip.

Twenty-eight volunteer drivers assist a paid driver to provide the City's service. The City has been using volunteers without their holding the correct licence endorsements and volunteer vehicles are not registered with the correct licence plates, nor do they undergo the inspections required by the Department of Transport.

The issue of the risks associated with the use of volunteer drivers was highlighted in the 1998 HACC Transport Review. Agencies have not taken action to remedy these matters because the development of the Brokerage is expected to address these concerns.

In the 1998 HACC Review, consumers were also reported to have been concerned about voluntary transport services as some volunteers were themselves, frail, aged or disabled. At the City of Joondalup, there have been anecdotal reports from clients (who have not wished to complain for fear of losing their service) that volunteer drivers have driven unsafely or whilst not well themselves, for example a driver suffering from shortness of breath.

# The way forward – benefits to participating in the new model

Several organisations are in similar predicaments, and participating in the North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project will provide the following benefits:

- Eliminate the legal risks whilst providing a superior service to current clients;
- Provide economies of scale, through the pooling of 6 HACC transport agencies resources, and the purchasing power of the Pilot Project which will enable more services to be available to the City of Joondalup's residents;

- Provide an expanded range of transport types for HACC eligible clients to include transport to shopping and social activities. Currently seniors who are not independently mobile have difficulty accessing other transport services including the City's own community transport buses;
- Increase the hours that services are available to include evenings, nights and weekends;
- Offer better access and equity of services to eligible City residents;
- Ensure that residents accessing the service will have drivers fully trained in transport services to the aged and disabled and who will be licensed through the Department of Transport.

### **DETAILS**

# Description of the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project

The information sheet entitled Home and Community Care Transport Brokerage, on page 11 of the Community Development Directorate's Information Sheets provided to Elected Members in December 1999, provided information on the Transport Brokerage and outlined the City's involvement to that date. Over the past six months further developments have taken place.

The HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project will now contract taxis to provide transport services to clients. Maxi-taxis and other taxis equipped to transfer aged and disabled people will be able to provide a high quality service that meets the appropriate standards and legislative requirements.

# The key elements are

- Door to door capability;
- Equitable fares so that user charges will be approximately equal to public transport fares;
- Accessibility to wheelchairs and other mobility aids;
- Clients transported safely, conveniently and with dignity;
- Greater choice of travel times than is available through the City's current service;
- More services available throughout the region;
- The capacity to integrate with fixed route public transport services and to respond to public transport system improvements;
- Clients able to access HACC transport for shopping and social activities;
- The ability to incorporate requests for urgent assistance. Currently the City's transport services are booked several days in advance.

The period of the Pilot Project is 1 July 2000 to 30 June 2001. In the first three months of the Pilot, processes and systems for the efficient operation of the service will be developed. The HACC transport agencies taking part in the Pilot Project will then be brought into the Pilot one at a time. This will ensure that there is a smooth transition for clients. The City of Joondalup is planned to be the first agency on board as from 2 October 2000, then the City of Wanneroo, followed by City of Stirling, Volunteer Task Force, Mercy Community Services and People Who Care. The percentage of Grant Monies the City has been asked to relinquish relates to the planned participation date period of 2 October 2000 to 30 June 2001. For operational reasons, such as the efficient use of taxis, the outer metropolitan areas are to be brought on first.

# **Implications of taking part in the Pilot Project**

- 1. Each participating agency will be asked to contribute a proportion of their HACC Transport grant funds to the Pilot Project. For the City, Grant Monies from 2 October 2000 till 30 June 2001, totaling \$57,875 will be needed to contribute to the operation of the Pilot Project's services. HACC have formally requested that Council agree to the transfer of these funds to the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot.
- 2. The City currently uses five HACC funded vehicles in the range of HACC services that it offers. Three of these vehicles are used in its HACC Transport Service. In order to ensure sufficient resources exist for the Pilot, HACC have requested that two of these vehicles be transferred to the HACC Training Brokerage Inc., which is the current sponsor of the Pilot Project. The City's own review of its HACC Transport and Community Transport services is about to deliver a final report which will recommend that the City negotiate with HACC to retain these two vehicles. It will be suggested to HACC that these two vehicles be used to enhance the City's HACC home visiting and shopping program and to provide a higher level of service in these areas. Therefore, this request from HACC can not be progressed at this time.
- 3. The City has two experienced HACC transport officers/administrative officers whose secondment to the Pilot Project has been requested. Chief Executive Officer approval to their secondment will be requested. The Community Transport Officer from July 31, 2000 and the Community Services Officer (Volunteers) from October 3, 2000. For the period of their secondment the City would freeze any accrued benefits. Superannuation would be paid by the North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project as would annual and sick leave, annual leave loading and workers' compensation. With these two staff forming the core of the Pilot's operational team, the residents of the City of Joondalup will have the advantage of having people they know and trust providing their services under the new model.
- 4. The 28 volunteer drivers will not be required to drive for the Pilot Project. Other options for volunteering will be communicated to volunteers once Council has agreed to the City's participation in the Pilot Project.

# Health Department of Western Australia to fund Communication Strategy

The Home and Community Care Program Section of the Health Department has set aside funds for the communication strategy. The HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Steering Committee, of which the City Of Joondalup is a participant, is ready to endorse a communication strategy that will involve stakeholders including clients, volunteers, participating agencies and referral sources. The strategy has not been finalised as formal acknowledgment of participation is yet to be provided to HACC by the agencies in the pilot area. Officers acknowledge that both volunteers and clients might feel some initial concern about the changes to the transport arrangements until they have had the benefits of the new model explained to them. That is why communicating with volunteers and clients will begin immediately Council agrees to the City's involvement.

# If Council declines to formally participate in the Pilot Project

Consequences of declining to participate are:

- That HACC may take steps to gain Federal and State Ministerial approval for the withdrawal of HACC Transport funding from the City;
- 166 residents of the City will be denied access to increased HACC transport services of a high standard that operate at flexible times to meet needs;
- Those residents making approximately 780 service requests per year that currently are not met by the City's HACC Transport Service, will have no opportunity to access a HACC transport service;
- Substantial Council resources will be required to manage the legislative and training issues surrounding the continued use of volunteer drivers for HACC transport.

#### **OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:** That Council AGREES to:

- the participation of the City of Joondalup in the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Programme;
- the transfer of \$57,875 (70 percent) of the City's Home and Community Care Transport Grant for 2000/2001 to the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot for the pilot year of 2000/2001. The mechanism for this would be for the City to receive only \$24,803 (30 percent of the grant) and for Home and Community Care to pay the balance of the grant (\$57,875) to the Pilot Project.

# **ADDITIONAL INFORMATION**

This memorandum provides additional information to Elected Members regarding the HACC North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Project. It recommends that the City's participation in the project be subject to:

- The City reaching agreement with HACC on acceptable client fee levels for the Pilot Project;
- Other HACC service providers in the region confirming their participation in the Pilot Project; and
- The City being able to retain the two vehicles that HACC has requested be transferred to the Pilot Project.

It also recommends that the City acknowledge volunteers.

Therefore, it is suggested that the recommendation in the Council Report No: CJ173 - 07/00 be changed to take account of these matters.

### **FEES**

# The City's Current Fee Structure for HACC Transport

The City's fees for clients who use the HACC Transport Service have not altered since July 1997 when the fee was set at \$2.00 for up to 10 kilometres and \$1.50 per 10 kilometres if the trip exceeds 10 kilometres. The distance for the return journey is included in the calculation. Some examples of the application of current charges are:

•	Beldon to Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital and return	\$6.00
•	Greenwood to Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital and return	\$4.50
•	Sorrento to Woodvale and return	\$2.00

These fees are generalisations and do not take into account individual circumstances and needs. For example, there is a clinic conducted at SCGH that begins at 2 pm. Residents of the City needing to go to that clinic must be the first patient seen with their appointment at 2 pm sharp, because return HACC transport cannot be provided after 3 pm. Residents who are unable to be seen by that time arrange other transport which may include paying for a full fare taxi. As an example, a trip from SCGH to Mullaloo by taxi may cost \$35.10.

# Fees Proposed for the Transport Brokerage Pilot Project

The Transport Brokerage Steering Committee has proposed that:

- One way travel up to 39kms be charged at \$4.00
- One way travel of 40kms or more be charged at \$6.00

As with the City's HACC transport, the service would be GST free.

Some examples of the application of the Transport Brokerage proposed charges are:

•	Beldon to Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital and return	\$8.00
•	Greenwood to Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital and return	\$8.00
•	Sorrento to Woodvale (subsidised physiotherapy class 50c per week) and return	\$8.00

It should be noted that the City's current clients who travel shorter rather than longer distances will be more disadvantaged than those travelling the longer distances. This impact will be felt by about 50 percent of current clients. This has come about because the City, together with the City of Wanneroo, has not increased its charges since 1997 whereas other service providers have. For example, Stirling charges \$3.00 per one way trip and \$6.00 return irrespective of distance and Volunteer Taskforce charge \$5.00 and \$10.00 irrespective of distance.

### **Other Subsidised Transport Options**

There are a number of other subsidised transport options which are not being used to best advantage by many of the City's HACC clients. The Department of Transport's Taxi Users' Subsidy Scheme (TUSS) provides taxi travel at up to 50% reduced rate for people with an assessed need and disability. For the example of travelling 4kms using a full fare paying taxi and a one way cost of \$7.02, a TUSS 50% reduced rate customer would be charged \$3.51 one

way. Set against the Transport Brokerage charge of \$4.00 one way, the consumer would most likely choose to use their TUSS entitlement.

Centrelink provides an additional benefit to disabled people in the form of a mobility allowance which compensates them for their transport costs.

If the City's clients took up the option of these other transport options, more HACC transport would be available to those in need.

# Pilot Project Fees and the Potential for Negotiation

While the fees proposed for the Transport Brokerage Pilot Project are based on economic modelling which addressed equity issues, they still do represent an increase for the current users of the City of Joondalup HACC Transport Service. Consequently, it is suggested that the City negotiate with HACC to reach an acceptable fee level for the Pilot Project.

### OTHER PARTICIPATING AGENCIES

The success of the Pilot Project will be dependent upon the various HACC transport agencies taking part in the Pilot Project all being brought into the pilot as planned. This will require formal agreement from those agencies. It is suggested that the City make its participation in the Pilot subject to formal confirmation of participation by the other HACC transport agencies.

### HACC VEHICLES

As indicated in Council Report No: CJ173 – 07/00, the City currently uses five HACC funded vehicles in the range of HACC services that it offers. Three of these vehicles are used in its HACC Transport Service. In order to ensure sufficient resources exist for the Pilot, HACC have requested that two of these vehicles be transferred to the HACC Training Brokerage Inc., which is the current sponsor of the Pilot Project. The City's own review of its HACC Transport and Community Transport services is about to deliver a final report which will recommend that the City negotiate with HACC to retain these two vehicles. In addition, as the Transport Brokerage is a pilot, it is not considered appropriate that the vehicles be transferred at this time particularly as it is the intent of HACC to realise these assets. Consequently, it is suggested that the City proceed with its plans to negotiate with HACC to retain these two vehicles.

## **VOLUNTEERS**

The volunteers who have participated in the City's HACC Transport Service have provided valuable assistance and it would be a loss to the community if their experience and skills were not utilised in some way. As outlined in Council Report No: CJ173 – 07/00, other options for volunteer work will be offered to volunteers and these will be communicated to the volunteers in meetings with them on 10, 11 and 12 July.

### CHANGE OF REPORT RECOMMENDATION

In view of the issues raised above, it is suggested that the Council recommendations be amended to read:

### "That Council:

- AGREES to participate in the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Programme subject to:
  - confirmation of the participation of the other proposed agencies in the Pilot;
  - reaching agreement with HACC on an acceptable client fee level for the Transport Brokerage which would require Council approval; and
  - The City retaining the two vehicles that HACC has requested be transferred to the Pilot Project.
- be provided with a report on the outcome of the negotiations outlined in Recommendation 1 so that it can confirm the City's participation in the Pilot Project
- AGREES to the transfer of \$57,875 (70 percent) of the City's Home and Community Care Transport Grant for 2000/2001 to the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot for the pilot year of 2000/2001 subject to the conditions outlined in Recommendation 1. The mechanism for this would be for the City to receive only \$24,803 (30 percent of the grant) and for Home and Community Care to pay the balance of the grant (\$57,875) to the Pilot Project.
- ACKNOWLEDGES and thanks those volunteers who have participated in the City's HACC Transport Service and notes that other opportunities for their involvement will be offered to them so that their experience and skills may be retained for the benefit of the community."

# **MOVED Cr Ewen-Chappell, SECONDED Cr Walker that Council:**

- 1 AGREES to participate in the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot Programme subject to:
  - confirmation of the participation of the other proposed agencies in the Pilot;
  - reaching agreement with HACC on an acceptable client fee level for the Transport Brokerage which would require Council approval; and
  - The City retaining the two vehicles that HACC has requested be transferred to the Pilot Project.
- be provided with a report on the outcome of the negotiations outlined in Recommendation 1 so that it can confirm the City's participation in the Pilot Project
- AGREES to the transfer of \$57,875 (70 percent) of the City's Home and Community Care Transport Grant for 2000/2001 to the Home and Community Care North Metropolitan Transport Brokerage Pilot for the pilot year of 2000/2001 subject to the conditions outlined in Recommendation 1. The

mechanism for this would be for the City to receive only \$24,803 (30 percent of the grant) and for Home and Community Care to pay the balance of the grant (\$57,875) to the Pilot Project.

4 ACKNOWLEDGES and thanks those volunteers who have participated in the City's HACC Transport Service and notes that other opportunities for their involvement will be offered to them so that their experience and skills may be retained for the benefit of the community.

The Motion was Put and

CARRIED

# INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT

**CJ174 - 07/00** 

ENTERPRISE BARGAINING AGREEMENT - INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS SERVICES (OUTSIDE WORKERS) - [43830]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_GRN.DOC:ITEM 2

#### **SUMMARY**

The Industrial Relations Commission certified the original Parks Landscaping Services Enterprise Bargaining Agreement on 27 March 1998 and the Engineering Enterprise Bargaining Agreement on 30 June 1998. The agreements were for a period of two years and the renegotiation process commenced in December 1999.

Due to restructuring of the work area into Operations Services, the above agreements have been amalgamated. Negotiations with workforce representatives have produced a document which recognises Council's strategic direction and customer service charter, while rewarding employees for service achieved.

The workforce committee and MEU Union representative met with the workforce and unanimously endorsed the productivity payment on a "without prejudice" basis.

## **DETAILS**

Following registration of the current document by the Industrial Relations Commission, all employees covered by this agreement will receive a \$25 per week productivity payment as at 1 July 2000 and a further \$20 per week as at 1 July 2001.

The two documents previously certified by the Industrial Relations Commission were similar and provided a basis for the changes desired by the City. Certification was achieved following lengthy discussions and minor industrial action.

The employees agreed to the annualisation of the industrial allowance,  $17\frac{1}{2}$ % leave loading, service pay, two days in lieu and bank charges. These items were replaced with a

productivity payment of \$60 per week for one year and an additional \$20 per week from 1 December 1998.

The amalgamation of the former business units of Engineering and Parks has enabled the implementation of various worker multi skilling and therefore improved utilisation of Council's plant and equipment assets.

A commitment to service and responsiveness to community needs are fundamental components of the service culture this agreement seeks to foster. Employees agree to develop and implement a customer service focus in all of their dealings with the stakeholders and particularly at the worksite.

The main variations within the current document relate to Customer Service (Clause 9), Consultation Group (Clause 16) and Performance Indicator Measurements (Clause 17). Sections of these clauses were included within the original documents and have now been enhanced to recognise the current City of Joondalup Strategic Plan and Code of Conduct.

# **Additional Areas of Improvement**

## 1. Work Order Complete Versus Generated

There has been a significant increase in requests for minor works and these have been completed via the normal maintenance procedures, due to the multi skilling aspects and rationalisation of functions.

# 2. Construction Plant

Joint utilisation of loader and two trucks has resulted in productivity and efficiency in both work sections (previously Parks and Engineering operated separate units). This has increased the overall workload and works must be prioritised to ensure the designated works are completed. The multi skilling of operators has assisted in progressing this change.

# 3. <u>Performance Indicator Measures</u>

Specific indicators are to be developed for the following items:-

Quality and reliability
Requirement for re-work
Accurate costing and budget allocations
Safety
Absenteeism
Labour turnover
Customer service
Service delivery process.

### 4. <u>City Watch</u>

Operations' employees have the capacity to increase Council's "on ground eyes and ears" as they are moving throughout the suburbs and often provide information to Joondalup Police regarding vandalism and theft. This is an area where employees are encouraged to observe and report only.

### **Justification**

When the previous agreement was registered, the agreement at that time put the employees ahead of award rates by approximately \$65 per week. During the life of the agreement, that differential declined to approximately \$57 per week. Further, it is anticipated that during the life of this agreement the award safety nets will move approximately between \$25 and \$35 per week.

When taking into account that during the previous agreement the award rates moved by \$26 per week over two years, the employees claim in this instance it is fair and reasonable given that award increases are not tied to productivity offsets and commitments that the agreement imposes on the employees.

From 1 June 2000, the basic wage rate increases by \$15 in accordance with the recent government announcement and it is reasonable to expect that a \$10-\$15 increase may apply for the second year.

The current proposal will increase the Operations Services operating budget as follows:-

Current labour budget total = \$3,534,299

Year 1 - \$25 per week per employee = \$148,200 = 4.19% increase

Year 2 - \$20 per week per employee = \$118,560 = 3.35% increase

Due to organisational changes within Operations Services, the proposed 2000/2001 maintenance budget has had a minimal increase from 1999/2000. This encompasses the increased park maintenance due to developer transfer and the Dry Park Development Program.

These achievements are attributed to the efficiency resulting from the amalgamation of the former Parks and Engineering sections.

Comparisons with similar EBA's from other local authorities are shown in Attachment 4 to indicate the current remuneration structures.

## **COMMENT**

Operations Services has forwarded the EBA document to A Lake Consulting for perusal due to Anne's involvement in developing the initial document.

Minor changes and additions were recommended and these have been inserted into the current document.

The procedure for certification of the agreement is as follows:-

- 1. Endorsement of the document by Council.
- 2. Distribution of the document to all employees covered by the agreement, with a 14 day response time.
- 3. Employee vote of acceptance, to be co-ordinated by the MEU.
- 4. MEU and Council to present the EBA document to the Industrial Commission for certification.

5. Payment to employees, back dated to 1 July 2000, to coincide with the expiry date of the initial document.

# MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Barnett that Council:

- 1 ENDORSES the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement as prepared by the Enterpries Bargaining Agreement Negotiation Committee and attached hereto in the Minute Book;
- APPROVES the payment of a \$25 per week productivity payment commencing 1 July 2000;
- APPROVES the payment of a \$20 per week productivity payment commencing 1 July 2001;
- 4 AUTHORISES the document to be forwarded to employees covered by the agreement, for adoption and certification, prior to certification by the Industrial Relations Committee.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

CJ175 - 07/00 PARKING - BATAVIA PLACE, KALLAROO - [01412] [08077 00055]

WARD - Hillarys

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 12

#### **SUMMARY**

Two petitions of 41-signatures and 37-signatures respectively have been received from residents of Batavia Place, Kallaroo expressing concern at parking congestion problems associated with Springfield Primary School. It is proposed that amended parking restrictions on this road be implemented as an interim measure pending a more detailed report on parent parking at Springfield Primary School.

### BACKGROUND

At the 26 April 2000 meeting of Council, two petitions of 41-signatures and 37-signatures respectively were presented from residents of Batavia Place, Kallaroo expressing concern at parking congestion problems associated with Springfield Primary School.

The petitioners have specifically requested consideration be given to only allowing parking on the approach to the school, adjacent to the existing footpath or that the existing restrictions be extended.

Council Officers have been concurrently working with the Springfield Primary School Road Safety Committee to implement a comprehensive road safety strategy at this school. Part of this strategy has seen the construction of on street parking embayments in Bridgewater Drive.

The next stage has been planned to provide an off street parking facility, essentially for parents of Pre-Primary children within the school property.

Traditionally there has been a reluctance from the Education Department to allow construction of parent parking facilities on school property. Essentially this has meant that discussions with key stakeholders have been slow. Agreement that the Education Department, investigate and provide options for an off street parking facility was finally achieved following a meeting on 3 March 2000.

While it had been hoped that a proposal for an off street parking facility would have been agreed on prior to this report, delays in receiving the proposals from the Education Department have hindered this process. The final comments on the proposals currently under discussion have just been received.

In view of this, it is envisaged that a detailed report on overall parent parking at Springfield Primary School will be presented to Council in the first quarter of the new financial year.

In the interim, a parking restriction proposal for Batavia Place is submitted for consideration.

### **DETAILS**

At any time up to 30 vehicles park in Batavia Place during morning and afternoon peak periods. Peak time usually lasts around 15 to 20 minutes, which means that during this time traffic flow is usually restricted. At other times traffic flow and access functions normally.

The main concern of residents is that parking on both sides of Batavia Place during peak times restricts normal traffic flow. While the existing width of Batavia Place (7.4m) may allow uniform parking on both sides, parent parking is normally non-uniform and therefore can create obstructions from time to time. While this creates a desirable low speed environment it invariably leads to driver and resident frustration.

The majority of parents which park in Batavia Place do so because of its proximity to the Pre-Primary classrooms. Unlike older children, there is a requirement for parents to escort their pre-primary children to and from the school. Unfortunately the requirement for parents to leave their vehicles for even short periods of time is essentially what causes the main parking problems.

Batavia Place already has a limited parking restriction in place, as shown on Attachment 1. At the time of implementation it had been intended that the 'NO PARKING' restriction would allow the cul-de-sac head to remain clear of vehicles. Technically however the 'NO PARKING' restriction allows motorists to immediately set down and pick up passengers (or goods). In effect this can restrict flow in this area, albeit for a short time.

In this instance, a 'NO STOPPING' restriction would be more appropriate to achieve this outcome.

In view of this, it is appropriate to consider a revised parking restriction strategy for Batavia Place. Ideally, any strategy would be aimed at reducing the congestion caused by parked vehicles and maintaining residential access while allowing limited parking for parents.

The petitioners request that consideration be given to only allowing parking on the approach to the school, adjacent to the existing footpath or that the existing restrictions be extended has merit. More importantly this type of strategy can easily be accommodated without adversely affecting a significant number of parent motorists.

On this basis, implementation of parking restrictions on one side of Batavia Place while allowing limited parking on the footpath side is supported. Parent motorists would be expected to remain clear of residential crossovers at all times under this proposal. In accordance with the City's Parking Local Laws, verge parking is banned without the adjacent landowners permission.

The type and extent of the proposed parking restriction strategy is shown on Attachment 2. The location of each petitioner is also shown on this Attachment.

### **COMMENT/FUNDING**

Ultimately the solution to this problem rests with providing an off street (on site) parent parking facility. While the School Road Safety Committee and Council Officers have been working towards this, obtaining agreement from the Education Department to consider this option has been slow.

While it is envisaged that a detailed report on parent parking at Springfield Primary School be presented to Council shortly, the implementation of an interim parking restriction strategy is supported.

On this basis the parking restrictions shown on Attachment 2 are submitted for consideration.

## MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Hurst that Council:

- ADOPTS the parking restriction strategy for Batavia Place as shown on Attachment 2 to Report CJ175-07/00;
- 2 ADVISE the petitioners accordingly.

## The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 8 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach8brf110700.pdf

Cr Nixon, in accordance with the City's Code of Conduct, declared an interest that may affect his impartiality in Item CJ176-07/00 as he is a local resident in the area.

Cr Nixon remained in the Chamber.

# CJ176 - 07/00 PETITION - CLEAN UP VACANT LAND IN DELAMERE AVENUE CURRAMBINE - [09382]

**WARD** - North Coastal

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 13

#### **SUMMARY**

Council has received a petition from 26 residents of Currambine requesting clean up of the undeveloped area of Pt Lot M1722 Delamere Avenue in Currambine. The petition specifically identified the rear aspect of the Grand Cinema Complex and requested the provision of screening planting.

#### BACKGROUND

The petition reads as follows:

"We the undersigned, being residents of Delamere Avenue, Currambine wish to express our dissatisfaction with the state of Delamere Avenue. We would like the area to be properly landscaped. In particular we would like some suitable "screening Trees" to be planted to help offset the ugly view of the rear of the "Grand Cinemas" complex.

We have been very patient with the process so far. How much longer do we have to wait?"

The area referred to in the petition is private land which is managed by Beaumaris Land Sales and the problem is currently being actioned by the developers.

## **DETAILS**

Stage 1 commercial land bordered by Delamere Avenue, Shenton Avenue and Marmion Avenue has been developed by Beaumaris Land Sales, as per the subdivision plan. There is an area of undeveloped land on the east side which has been of concern to adjoining residents due to its visual appearance. The area is 60% indigenous vegetation, specifically low scrub and 40% cleared land incorporating soil and rubble stockpiles.

Development proposals for this area have been under review by Beaumaris Land Sales and the information received from that organisation indicates that a final concept will be presented during 2001.

In the interim, Beaumaris Land Sales has met with various residents listed on the petition and will endeavour to improve the visual aspects.

# **Future Proposals**

There is an area of Public Open Space listed for development by Beaumaris Land Sales within the undeveloped land and it is proposed that the Delamere Avenue median enhancement be undertaken in conjunction with the Public Open Space.

Beaumaris Land Sales has initiated additional maintenance works within the property verges and screen planting to minimise the visual impact of the Cinema Complex is also under consideration. It must be recognised, however, that the final concept may significantly impact on any tree planting undertaken at this stage.

MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Barnett that Council ADVISES the petitioners that the land referred to in the petition is private property and that Beaumaris Land Sales has initiated various interim works to improve the visual appearance of the area.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

CJ177 - 07/00 PETITION - INSTALLATION OF SECURITY FLOODLIGHTING AT PERCY DOYLE PARK DUNCRAIG - [02056] [14064]

**WARD** - South Coastal

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 14

# **SUMMARY**

Council has received a 130-signature petition requesting the installation of adequate security floodlighting a Percy Doyle Park in Duncraig.

The area of concern is the grassed embankment and car park in the vicinity of the clubrooms servicing T-Ball and junior football. One light is centrally located in the car park and there are also two training lights directed on to the oval area (refer Attachment 1 - plan of area).

Investigation confirms the petitioners' comments and the provision of additional lighting is proposed for the car park..

#### **BACKGROUND**

The petition reads as follows:

"Install adequate security floodlights at Percy Doyle Reserve, Warwick Road, Duncraig to illuminate the grass embankments and car park in vicinity of the Percy Doyle Clubrooms for theSorrento-Duncraig Junior Football and Wanneroo T-Ball clubs. This darkened area is used regularly on Friday and weekend nights by large crowds of local under-age juveniles as a meeting place for unruly drinking and drug abuse. In addition to damage to the clubrooms, the grass embankments, oval playing surface and car park are left strewn with

broken glasss and drug-using implements that place in jeopardy for safety of junior sports-persons and parents using the facility for sporting and recrational activities over the weekends. Furthermore, the playing surfaces of the adjacent Sorrento Tennis and Sorrento Bowling clubs are regularly littered with beer cans and broken beer stubbies. It is envisaged that effective lighting, installed on the embankments north and south of the football and T-Ball clubrooms, will discourage this practice."

#### **DETAILS**

The clubrooms are currently hired for community use on weekends and this has resulted in various incidents relating to youth activities when leaving the area.

Debris from parties and informal youths gathering in the area has resulted in minor damage to building fixtures, broken glass and drug implements being left on the turf, car park area and in the adjoining shrub area. This is of concern as the oval is utilised extensively for junior sports on weekends. Supervision of the oval surrounds by club officials is difficult due to location and number of children involved in sports.

The current car park lighting is below Council's normal standard and the option to provide additional lighting is currently under investigation. Preliminary cost estimate for an additional pole is \$1,260. A surplus pole in the Works Depot is available for immediate utilisation.

The provision of additional lighting to the oval surrounds and embankment will be difficult to achieve due to the extent of the area involved and the shrubs/trees planted along the western boundary abutting the bowling club. This area was planted to screen the bowling club and to minimise the impact from easterly winds during summer and any proposal to remove or reduce this screening will impact on this function.

There are two large embankment areas with access to car parks. At the southern end, a large 60-bay car park with standard lighting provides direct access to the oval area. The area to the south-west of the clubrooms forms a drainage swale function and has surrounding embankments.

Illumination of these areas would require the installation of two poles with four luminaries directed specifically on to the shrub/tree area and embankments. Cost estimate - \$11,620. This estimate is high due to limestone conditions. These lights would have no additional security benefit to the clubrooms.

It is therefore recommended that the installation of an additional pole and luminaries in the car park proceeds, funded via the Car Park Lighting maintenance account, be approved.

It is also recommended that the security problems with the embankment area be monitored by Ranger Services to determine whether additional lighting would be sufficient to deter the antisocial activities.

#### **COMMENT/FUNDING**

Account No: 11-60-72-721-0507-1705

Budget Item: Maintenance

Budget Amount: \$

Actual Cost: \$1,260

# **MOVED Cr Ewen-Chappell, SECONDED Cr Kenworthy that:**

- 1 Council APPROVES the installation of an additional pole and luminaries to the car park at Percy Doyle Park in Duncraig at a cost of \$1,260;
- 2 the costs associated in installation of the additional pole and luminaries as detailed in (1) above be charged to Account No 11-60-72-721-0507-1705 Car Park Lighting maintenance;
- 3 Council APPROVES the monitoring of the embankment area by Ranger Services, in order to determine alternatives to the installation of additional security lighting.

#### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 9 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach9brf110700.pdf

CJ178 - 07/00 WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR THE CITY OF JOONDALUP - [36958]

WARD - All

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 15

# **SUMMARY**

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the City of Joondalup's Waste Management Strategy, Attachment I. Council, at its meeting on 23 May 2000, agreed to release the discussion paper for The City's Waste Management Strategy for public comment. It was released with a 28 day comment period, closing 20 June 2000. An assessment criteria was included in the paper and the comments have been evaluated accordingly, Attachment 2. Limited interest was shown in the discussion paper with two written comments being received. Interest was shown over the Internet with 36 hits being recorded. The libraries, generally, reported a passive response with an average of three copies being given out at each establishment.

In view of the limited response to the discussion paper, a statistically valid telephone survey was conducted to gauge the likely response to the optional recycling cart service. The results indicate (after weighting for the likely outcome) a maximum of 8.7% of residents would participate. This equates to approximately 8000 participants within the City; 4000 new participants and approximately 4000 trial participants that already have a cart and wish to continue with a service. It should be kept in mind that the survey was based on a recycling motive, the issue of gaining extra capacity in rubbish bins by using the recycling cart was not canvassed, therefore, at this time, it is prudent to assume a figure of 10000 to 15000 carts would be required. It is envisaged once the recycling carts are introduced more interest will be shown in them.

Council will be aware, the Strategy has been developed with the flexibility to address the long term directions of the Mindarie Regional Council and the possible impact it will have on the City's waste collection systems. In the short term, it provides Council with a recycling strategy, introducing an optional recycling cart service.

This strategic approach has been taken due to the Mindarie Regional Council's Regional Waste Management Strategy identifying the possibility of the introduction of an advanced waste processing system. If the system is introduced, the recycling service will be significantly affected. Waste separation technology may mean that one bin will only be required to achieve the waste diversion targets to landfill.

A comprehensive community consultation process has been adopted to develop the final strategy. It represents a responsible approach and the most viable option currently available to Council in consideration of the uncertain long term disposal variables at this present time and addresses the community's recycling expectations.

### **BACKGROUND**

The Joint Commissioners considered a report on Strategic Waste Management Directions for the City of Joondalup on 26 October 1999. They agreed, in principle, to the development of a Waste Management Strategy for the City of Joondalup. There were a number of considerations given to the development of the plan which included:

- strategic planning issues for Lot 17 and the Regional Waste Management Plan for the Mindarie Region;
- the viability of secondary waste treatment processing and separation technologies including the results of the recycling trial prior to making a determination on the future recycling format;
- the possibility for the development of a regional MRF at Badgerup taking into consideration secondary waste treatment processing and separation technologies;
- gaining greater efficiencies through a regional strategy for green waste processing and/or collection; and
- in the long term, determine the most appropriate waste management collection system for the treatment technologies identified by the Mindarie Regional Council.

The City's Waste Management Strategy has been developed by the following steps:

- a) a briefing session on the Regional Waste Management Plan was held with elected members on Tuesday, 11 January 2000;
- b) a discussion paper for waste management strategy was issued to elected members on Friday 7 April 2000;
- c) Councillors have also attended several workshops that have dealt with future directions in secondary waste treatment technologies;

- d) a workshop was held with elected members on 19 April 2000 to discuss waste management issue concerning the region, introduction to the outcomes from the Mindarie Regional Council Regional Waste Management Plan and give elected members the opportunity to consider and have input into the draft discussion paper the City's waste management strategy;
- e) A strategy paper for public comment was developed from issues agreed to at the workshop;
- f) The discussion paper issued for public comment, closing 20 June 2000; and
- g) The final Strategy presented to Council for adoption.

#### **DETAILS**

The Waste Management Strategy has been developed in consideration of the long term strategic directions the Mindarie Regional Council is pursuing with respect to secondary waste treatment and the need for the City's waste collection service to be integrated with Mindarie Regional Council's long term strategy.

The Waste Management Strategy also recognises that in the period between secondary waste treatment and the present, Council needs to address the community's expectation that an upgraded recycling service would be introduced. The community was surveyed in 1998 which identified that most people supported programmes to benefit the environment but there was a 50/50 split between those willing to pay more and those who were unwilling to pay more for an upgraded recycling service. The option that received most support was a voluntary user pays system for residents wanting a cart system. Also, the response from the recycling cart trial was extremely encouraging with enquiries still being received regarding the recycling cart.

Accordingly, the City's Waste Management Strategy consists of two important parts in regard to recycling:

- a long term strategy which has flexibility to allow the introduction of secondary waste treatment and the subsequent changes to the collection system according to the preferred option for waste disposal/treatment
- an interim strategy which provides Council with a way forward to address the community's expectation of the introduction of a recycling cart through a voluntary up front charge for the cost of the cart and the servicing. The interim strategy includes the following:
  - 2.1 maintain the current bag system to all residents, the situation will remain unchanged, they will pay the going rubbish charge, currently \$113;
  - 2.2 for those ratepayers who wish to have a recycling cart, the City will facilitate a service on a voluntary up front user pays basis. This will include the cost of the cart and the service fee (less the service fee for the bag system). Whether the cart is divided or commingled will depend on the future of City of Wanneroo's sorting facility (MRF). Those residents who choose to take up this option will not be serviced by the bag system. An indicative rubbish charge

for the first year will be \$222.00 (the cost of the cart is subject to GST) per household, including the cost of the cart and delivery. The service charge will be pro-rata and is dependent upon the implementation date of the service. The indicative charge for the second year and on, is approximately \$145.00 per household. The service charge is based on the 1999/2000 rubbish charge. This may change due to the volume and the mix of recyclables. Residents will be advised of the costs at the time of ordering the recycling carts. The cart order forms will be issued with the rate notices;

- voluntary and compulsory residents already in the trial, will retain the cart but pay an annual servicing fee (Note, this does not include the cost of the cart as they already have use of it for considerable time, a sense of ownership will now be with them and to charge for the cost of the cart is not considered appropriate). The indicative rubbish charge for a full year is approximately \$145.00. The service charge is based on the 1999/2000 rubbish charge. This may change due to the volume and the mix of recyclables;
- 2.4 notice of the introduction of the carts will be delivered with the rate notice explaining the cart may become redundant after the introduction of secondary waste treatment processing;
- 2.5 finalise discussions with the City of Wanneroo a proposal to upgrade the Badgerup Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) to a commingled facility. This is dependent on a number of issues including negotiations with the City of Swan. The final outcome on the MRF will be subject to a separate report to Council:
- extend the Service Level Agreement with the City of Wanneroo the full extended term, 12 months from January 2001 to January 2002. There will be a settling in period with the implementation of a new service, and it will also give the City of Joondalup the opportunity to develop a better understanding in relation to secondary waste treatment timeframes and options for the region. During this period, Council can make a determination on whether it should tender the sorting and collection services or either.

The rationale for the introduction of an up front user pays recycling cart is that the long term directions of the Mindarie Regional Council's Waste Management Strategy for collection services are unknown. The City's position is that it encourages recycling however, the introduction of a compulsory recycling cart service is an extra ordinary expense for ratepayers that may have a redundant cart in the short to medium term with the introduction of an advanced treatment system. Accordingly, the City should facilitate the introduction of the cart recycling service i.e. facilitate the tendering, assembly, delivery, collection and the sorting of collected recyclables, on the basis that the upfront capital cost be treated on a user pays basis.

In view of the limited response to the discussion paper and the practical need to establish the likely participation rate in the recycling cart service, a telephone survey was conducted to gauge the response. According to the survey approximately 58% of people already in the recycling trial will elect to participate in the service, the rest of the residents, those who will have to purchase a cart is approximately 15%. The fact that the cart may become redundant if secondary waste treatment was introduced in six or seven years did not impact on their decision to participate in the optional recycling service. Realistically, not all respondents

would do as they say. The proportion of people who do not use a recycling cart but are likely to take up the offer (after the application of a model which predicts likelihoods), and given the proposed waste treatment plant's impact, is a maximum of 8.3% of residents. This equates to approximately 8000 participants within the City; 4000 new participants and approximately 4000 participants that already have a cart and wish to continue with a service. The survey interviewed 250 residents, representative of the population at 95% confidence levels plus or minus 6.3% standard error

It should be kept in mind that the survey was based on a recycling issue, gaining extra capacity in rubbish bins by using the recycling cart was not canvassed, therefore at this time it is prudent to assume a figure of 10000 to 15000 carts would be required. It is envisaged more interest will be shown in the carts once they have been introduced, especially by residents having bin capacity problems.

# Recycling cart implementation plan with indicative timelines

•	strategy accepted by Council	July 2000
•	review of contractual obligation with the City of Wanneroo	September 2000
•	determine the configuration of the MRF with City of Wanneroo	September 2000
•	determine cart numbers from order form issued with rates	October 2000
•	allow for gearing up time City of Wanneroo	November 2000
•	procure and deliver carts	December/Jan
	2000	
•	commence cart recycling service	January/Feb 2001

#### **COMMENT/FUNDING**

The actual implementation of the recycling cart service is unlikely to occur until the next calendar year as Council will need to make provision for more recycling carts via a tender process and City of Wanneroo will need time to gear up for the extra workload. It is envisaged that this lead up work would result in at least a six month lag period prior to the service becoming available to our community early next year.

Since the recycling cart system will be on a user pays basis, it should be a cost neutral operation. There is however, a need to fund the purchase of the bins with a temporary amount until monies are received from the residents wanting a bin. An account structure will need to be set up for such transactions.

# MOVED Cr Rowlands, SECONDED Cr Wight that Council:

- 1 ADOPTS the City's Waste Management Strategy as depicted in Attachment 1 to Report CJ178-07/00;
- 2 SERVES notice on the City of Wanneroo to exercise its option and review the Recycling Service Level Agreement for the extended term of one year being January 2001 to January 2002;

- ENDORSES participation in discussions with the City of Wanneroo on the type of materials recovery facility at Badgerup Road, either co-mingled or split bin system, and be aware this may implicate the term of the Service Level Agreement. This will be the subject of a separate report to Council once discussions have been completed;
- 4 RECEIVES the recycling cart implementation plan with indicative timelines.

#### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendices 10(a) and (b) refer

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: <u>Attach10abrf110700.pdf</u>
Attach10bbrf110700.pdf

# PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Cr Carlos previously stated his intention to declare a financial interest in Item CJ179-07/00 as he is a shareholder of Telstra. (Cr Carlos was not present at this evening's meeting).

Director Planning and Development declared a financial interest in Item CJ179-07/00 as he is a shareholder of Telstra.

Cr Kadak advised that he is a shareholder of Telstra, however his shareholding is not to an extent which required him to declare a financial interest.

Cr Kadak and Director Planning and Development remained in the Chamber.

CJ179 - 07/00 PROPOSED MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT LOT 11 (923) WHITFORDS AVENUE, WOODVALE - [20082]

WARD - Lakeside

CJ000711\_BRF.DOC:ITEM 16

# **SUMMARY**

An application has been received for a new Optus Mobile Telecommunications Facility (MTF) at Lot 11 (923) Whitfords Avenue, Woodvale. Optus seeks approval to erect a mobile telephone tower 16.2 metres high with antennas and a base station within a bricked compound. The site abuts a retirement village complex, the Woodvale Shopping Centre, and is in close proximity to residential development, a library and a community centre.

The above proposal is a "use not listed" in Town Planning Scheme No. 1 (TPS1), and has therefore been advertised for public comment. Considerable objection to the MTF has been received from the adjoining landowners and community.

The proposal is not compatible with adjoining land uses in the immediate vicinity, and as a consequence, the MTF is likely to have an adverse impact on the residential amenity of the area. The location and height of the facility would have a negative impact on the visual amenity of the surrounding neighbourhood. Until further, conclusive evidence is available regarding the potential health impact of the MTF, a precautionary approach is recommended with the siting of new MTF, away from existing and future sensitive uses, such as houses and community purpose sites.

Refusal of the proposal is recommended.

## BACKGROUND

Lot 11

Street Address 923 Whitfords Avenue, Woodvale Land Owner Woodvale Park Commercial Centre

Applicant Connell Wagner

MRS Zoning Urban

TPS Zoning Mixed Business

Land Use Mobile Telephone Facility

Permissibility of Use Use Not Listed Lot Area 10091m<sup>2</sup>

Lot Area 10091m<sup>2</sup> Ward Lakeside

Under the Telecommunication Act 1997 (as amended) and the Telecommunications (Low-Impact Facilities) Determination 1997, the proposal is defined as a "High Impact" facility.

All "High Impact" facilities are required to be determined under TPS1. The proposal has been advertised pursuant to Clause 3.10 of TPS1 as a "use not listed" in the zoning table, by way of:

- 1. Referrals to adjoining/affected landowners for comment;
- 2. Three (3) advertisements in the local community newspaper; and
- 3. Two (2) signs erected on site for a period of 21 days.

At the close of the submission period, three petitions, with a total of 1337 signatures and 12 individual submissions were received objecting to the proposal. Two submissions in support of the proposal were also received.

The objections were considered in detail, and the main issues raised were:

- Unknown long-term health impact resulting from electromagnetic energy (EME) and its interference with the use of heart pacemakers, hearing aids and television receptions;
- Adverse visual impact of the structure due to its location within a low scale commercial and residential area;
- Lack of justification for development of a new MTF as Optus already enjoys adequate mobile telephone coverage in the area;
- Amenity impact on the community;
- Duplication with the nearby One-Tel MTF;
- Lack of community acceptance;
- Adverse impact on the shopping centre.

The two (2) submissions received in support of the proposal indicated:

- The proposal is not obstructive as it is located behind the existing shops, as compared to towers located in an exposed area;
- The proposal would provide better reception for mobile telephone users in the area as the current coverage is inadequate.

The proposal was referred to the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) as the land upon which the proposed development is sited abuts Whitfords Avenue, land reserved as "Other Regional Roads" under the Metropolitan Region Scheme (MRS). The WAPC have advised that they do no object to the proposal, based on regional transport planning grounds.

## Applicant's Submission

The applicant's submission has been summarised as follows:

- Optus has identified a need to provide improved mobile telephone coverage for the Kingsley and Woodvale areas.
- · Various other locations such as Chichester Park, Timberland Park and Whitfords transport interchange have also been investigated. The sites were considered unsuitable due to either planning, engineering, commercial leasing, or on radio frequency grounds.
- The height for the facility has been reduced from 30 metres (100% coverage) to 16.2 metres, which will result in achieving on 70% of the coverage objective for the area.
- The site has been chosen as it "is considered acceptable on planning and environmental, engineering and commercial lease grounds" with minimal environmental impact.
- To reduce visual impact, a slimline, monopole with flush antennas is proposed.
- Additional carriers are able to co-locate on this structure. However, future equipment shelter locations need to be addressed by individual carriers.
- The structure has been located behind buildings, within a service area and away from road frontages and adjoining properties. Access to the site is proposed via the rear service easement access.
- The Australian Communication Authority (ACA) has standards which limit human exposure to EME, which are the most stringent in the world. The ACA Standard is 200 micro watts per square centimetre. Measurements carried out at more than 20 sites nationally have recorded between 0.01 to 0.06 micro watts per square centimetre levels of EME emissions. This amounts to approximately 0.03% of the ACA's mandatory requirement. No scientific study has found conclusive evidence of negative health and "Optus believes that mobile telephone base stations do not pose a risk to human health."

The applicant has submitted the following additional information in response to the concerns raised in the public submissions.

• The issue relating to health is a public perception rather than facts based on scientific evidence. The frequencies allocated would not affect the operation of AM/FM frequencies, television/satellite receptions and emergency service frequencies, or interfere with pacemakers, hearing aids or other medical devices. The EME is less

than 1000 times below ACA Standards, and it is considered unreasonable to refuse the proposed based on EME;

- There is no evidence to substantiate that land values would be adversely affected;
- The reduction in height and the site selection will reduce potential visual impact. Optus was unaware of the One-Tel proposal at Kingsley when the above proposal was submitted. Nevertheless, the One-Tel proposal is outside the poor coverage area experienced by Optus; and
- There is no reason to suggest customers would be discouraged in patronising the adjoining shopping centre.

#### **DETAILS**

The proposed MTF consists of a slimline monopole 16.2 metres in height. Attached to the structure are three (3) 2.262 metre long panel antennas and one (1) 0.6 metre diameter parabolic antenna. A base station constructed of colorbond material measuring 3.0 metres long by 2.6 metres wide and 3.0 metres high is proposed at the base of the monopole (site plans and elevations attached). The MTF (which abuts the Woodvale Shopping Centre) is approximately 60 metres from the adjoining retirement village to the west of the development site.

The base station would be enclosed within a bricked-up compound. The total construction period takes approximately six (6) weeks. The base station operation is unmanned and would be inspected on a monthly basis.

Notably, Council considered a discussion paper for MTF within the City of Joondalup at a Briefing Session on 20 June 2000 (see Attachment 1). The outcome from this discussion paper is for the preparation of a draft telecommunication policy for the City.

### **COMMENT**

The main issues this proposal raises are as follows:

- The potential impact on health of residents an concern over the interference with pacemakers, hearing aids and radio/satellite and television receptions;
- The potential impact on the visual amenity of the area;
- The possible loss in property values; and
- The lack of justification for the area selected.

# **Current Approach**

The current approach taken by the City places an emphasis on co-location of telecommunication facilities and considers the siting of new towers as the last possible option. The City's assessment criteria for MTF proposals includes:

- 1 Acceptability of location;
- 2 Impact on amenity of the area;
- Proximity to sensitive uses (such as houses and schools);
- 4 Availability of alternative sites for co-location of facilities.

The size and proliferation for new facilities is important as the community generally view that the bigger the structure, the more impact they have on their quality of life.

# **Health**

There is community concern that there are possible long term health risks associated with towers and mobile phone facilities. Some community groups recommend that a precautionary approach needs to be taken.

International and national scientific studies conclude that there is no substantiated evidence to suggest living near a mobile telephone tower causes adverse health effects. Telecommunication carriers follow safety limits regulated by the Australian Communications Authority (ACA). The prescribed limits are based on scientific experience an reviews from bodies such as the International Commission for Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP). Notwithstanding these comments there is, however, a divergence of scientific opinion from independent studies into the health impacts associated with mobile telephone towers to suggest the opposite to the above findings. This means siting towers away from residential areas and other sensitive uses such as schools until there is conclusive scientific evidence to the contrary that there are no health risks.

The EME Public Health Committee Secretariat from the Department of Communications & the Arts has published that "it is extremely unlikely that mobile phones will interfere with cardiac pacemakers". The applicant has more definitely advised that MTF will not interfere with the operation of pacemakers, hearing aids or other medical devices.

In view of the lack of scientific evidence over the possible heath impacts, it is open to the City to adopt a precautionary approach to the proposed MTF given the nearby location of a retirement village, residential housing, library and community centre.

## Visual Impact

It is acknowledged that the height has been reduced as low as technically possible, however the structure is likely to have an adverse impact on the visual amenity of the surrounding area. The petitioners share this view almost unanimously.

The visual impact of the tall structure is compounded by the prevailing low-rise appearance of the surrounding area. The surrounding area has the following characteristics

- Low rise residential buildings of single storey construction
- Low rise commercial buildings, also of single storey construction
- Predominantly immature natural vegetation, with very few large mature trees to screen the proposed MTF.
- Development typically undulates with the natural lie of the land.

The proposal constitutes a major departure from the current 'urban landscape', and is not viewed as being positive in this location.

## Effects of Telecommunication Towers on Property Values

There is no known published findings to suggest that land/property values are affected by mobile telephone facilities.

# Need for MTF

Technical advice provided by the applicant indicates that the areas of Woodvale and Kingsley currently experience marginal mobile telephone coverage

The need for good telecommunication coverage is acknowledged, with consumer demand generating the need for additional facilities. The City has recently resolved to prepare a draft policy on telecommunication facilities, to guide the City and carriers in dealing with future telecommunication facilities.

In the meantime, a group meeting with Optus and other Mobile Phone providers could prove beneficial, in order to gain an appreciation of network coverage issues, notional preferred site locations (by service providers), and raising the fundamental concerns of the Council. In this way, opportunities for co-location could be explored, as well as broad principles of ensuring (as far as is possible) that future infrastructure is compatible with the community form an amenity point of view.

#### Conclusion

The proposal would significantly impact on the appearance of the area by its height, when compared to the surrounding low rise development

The proposal is also in reasonably close proximity to residences and community facilities.

Until further conclusive scientific evidence is available regarding the potential health impact of the MTF, a precautionary approach needs to be taken accordingly in the selection of suitable sites for the above facilities, away from existing sensitive uses such as residential and community uses. It is recommended that the proposal be refused.

# MOVED Cr Kadak, SECONDED Cr Nixon that Council:

- 1 REFUSES the application for a Mobile Telephone Facility at Lot 11 (923) Whitfords Avenue, Woodvale for the following reasons:
  - (a) the proposed development would adversely impact on the amenity of the area, due to its excessive height, in an area predominantly characterised by low scale residential and commercial developments;
  - (b) given the lack of conclusive scientific evidence over the possible health impacts, the City has taken a precautionary approach to the siting of the proposed Mobile Telecommunication Facility within this sensitive location surrounded by residential development (retirement village) and within close proximity to community facilities and does not support the location in this instance;
- 2 REQUESTS the mobile phone carriers to attend a group forum to discuss;
  - (a) current problems with network coverage in the City of Joondalup;
  - (b) notional preferred site locations for future infrastructure;

(c) a strategy to ensure amenity impacts upon the community are minimised.

#### Discussion ensued.

# The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendices 11(a) and (b) refer

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach11abrf110700.pdf Attach11bbrf110700.pdf

CJ180 - 07/00

PROPOSED PIGEON LOFT, ENCLOSURE AND KEEPING OF PIGEONS AT LOT 45 (9) SPOONBILL GROVE, KINGSLEY - [22430]

WARD - South

CJ000711 BRF.DOC:ITEM 17

#### **SUMMARY**

An application has been received for keeping of pigeons within a pigeon loft, and pigeon enclosure on Lot 45 (9) Spoonbill Grove, Kingsley.

The pigeon loft and separate enclosure have been constructed without Council approval. The location of the loft does not conform to the provisions of Council's Town Planning Scheme No 1 (TPS1).

The City's Local Laws relating to keeping of pigeons allows up to 150 pigeons to be kept, (excluding young birds), if the applicant is a financial member of a registered incorporated racing pigeon body, as a registered pigeon fancier. The enclosures house between 100 and 120 pigeons.

The applicants have prepared a submission requesting that approval be granted for the loft and enclosure: The options presented include:

- Option 1 Slightly move the pigeon loft away from the rear boundary and retain 1.2 metre side setback.
- Option 2 Relocate the pigeon loft 10.0 metres from the rear boundary and 6.5 metres from the side boundary to comply with TPS1 setback requirements.

The proposal was advertised and objections were raised by an adjoining landowner regarding perceived environmental and health issues and the contravention of side setbacks within the Special Residential zone. Two additional submissions in support of Option 1 were received from the adjoining side landowners.

The keeping of pigeons is considered to be an integral component of the Residential use of the property. Approval for the proposal requires the Council to exercise discretion under Town Planning Scheme No 1 to vary the building setbacks within the Special Residential zone. It

is recommended that Council approve Option 1 (described above). The preferred option will have the least impact on neighbouring owners in terms of residential amenity.

#### **BACKGROUND**

Lot	45
Street Address	9 Spoonbill Grove, Kingsley
Land Owner	Alfred and Gillian Scerri
Applicant	Alfred and Gillian Scerri
MRS Zoning	Urban
TPS Zoning	Special Residential
Land Use	Single House & keeping of pigeons
Permissibility of Use	Permitted 'P' – Single House (keeping of pigeons)
Lot Area	$2,062\text{m}^2$

The City has received previous complaints about the pigeons from one of the adjoining landowners relating to noise, health, privacy and lifestyle impacts associated with keeping of pigeons. Noise is caused by pigeons cooing at night and when they fly to and from the property. The health issues relate to the fine dust from the fluttering of the pigeons during flights, the burying of the bird litter and bird droppings. The rear landowners claim they are not able to open their bedroom windows, which face the above property to take advantage of natural ventilation in summer due to these impacts.

The owners were requested to submit an Application for Approval to Commence Development for the keeping of pigeons and lofts in a revised location. The City has received advice from its solicitors that it is not possible for the City to issue retrospective planning approvals for existing development under TPS1.

The proposal was referred to the adjoining landowners for comment. At the close of the submission period, one (1) objection and two (2) submissions in support of Option 1 were received from adjoining landowners.

The objection was considered in detail and is summarised as follows:

- Option 1 does not comply with setback requirements;
- The existing wire enclosure (stock pigeons) faces the objector's lot;
- Noise and dust emissions are directed towards rear house (bedroom) with Option 2;
- Health concerns exist relating to the keeping of pigeons. The applicant's house is well shielded from the loft.
- Under Option 1, the loft should be moved 10.0 metres from the rear boundary and the existing pigeon enclosure be bricked up on the north side; and
- Under Option 2, the opening should face south, not north.

The proposal was referred to the Director Planning and Development for determination under Delegated Authority on 4 May 2000 and 18 May 2000 where it was decided to defer the proposal pending further investigation of the:

- Approach to keeping pigeons in other Councils;
- Current approvals issued in the City for the keeping of pigeons.

These issues are discussed below.

# Local Laws in City of Joondalup and other Local Governments

Prior to February 1998, a maximum of 75 pigeons were allowed under the former City Health By-Laws. The Health Department of WA set pigeon numbers at 150 and the City subsequently set its maximum at that figure within its recently revised Local Law. This figure was to cater for the start of the racing season and the annual depletion of pigeons over the season.

As part of the assessment process for the proposal, the following local governments were contacted to determine maximum number of pigeons allowed in their localities:

Local Authority	No of Pigeons Allowed As of Right	Total Number of Pigeons Allowed if Applicant is a Member of a Recognized Pigeon Association/Racing Pigeon Body
Shire of Swan	20	75
City of Canning	10	100
City of Stirling	30	75
City of Wanneroo	20	150
City of Joondalup	20	150

# Approvals in the City of Joondalup

There are currently 9 properties (below) where the keeping of up to 150 pigeons has been approved. The City did not exercise any planning discretion in relation to the location of lofts for those approvals.

Property Address	Lot Area
Ricketts Way, Greenwood	751m <sup>2</sup>
Warner Drive, Padbury	684m2
Conidae Drive, Heathridge	747m2
Smallman Way, Greenwood	740m2
Cumberland Way, Beldon	725m2
Seaflower Crescent, Craigie	683m2
Dillenia Way, Greenwood	804m2
Island Place, Heathridge	683m <sup>2</sup>
Clontarf Street, Sorrento	706m <sup>2</sup>

(There are currently no other pigeon keeping approvals in close proximity to the subject lot).

The applicant's submission in support of the proposal states that:

- "The pigeon loft was erected in the current position as it is claimed no advice was given that planning approval and a building licence for the structures were required. These approvals are in addition to a licence for keeping pigeons under the Health Local Laws;
- Preference is for Option 1 as the opening would be to the East and not to the north which is the direction of the objector's property. This location is also conducive to the health of the pigeons and keeps the male pigeons furthest from the rear property.
- The earliest possible time to commence relocation and works is after the racing season (October) so that racing preparation is not affected and also allows the trapping of pigeons;
- According to the owner, the stock pigeons are kept in the existing enclosure (chicken coop) on the property. Pigeon numbers vary from between 100 to 120 and is dependant on the breeding season, racing season and loss of pigeons during flights;
- Pigeons are released daily for exercise and race preparation; and
- Pigeons require adequate sunshine to keep healthy."

#### **DETAILS**

The development proposal consists of the following elements.

In the main pigeon loft (the female and male) racing pigeons are divided into compartments. A separate wire pigeon enclosure housing 15 stock birds is currently situated behind an existing garage facing the rear boundary. The racing pigeons are let out daily for exercise and training. Currently between 100-120 pigeons are kept, excluding young pigeons.

The applicant has lodged a proposal that includes two options, (plus a request for status quo) in an attempt to satisfy the City's requirements. In both the options the number of pigeons remains between 100-120.

**Option 1** entails moving the pigeon loft further away from the rear boundary to achieve a rear setback (north) of approximately 4 metres with a side setback of 1.2 metres to the west. Option 1 requires a variation to setbacks as the required rear setback is 10.0 metres and the side setbacks are 5 metres for building structures within the Special Residential zone. The enclosure for the stock pigeons is to remain.

**Option 2** includes relocating the existing pigeon loft to be setback 10 metres from the rear (north) boundary and 6.5 metres to the side (west boundary), and attach the enclosure for the stock pigeons to the loft.

#### **COMMENT**

The main issues to be considered are as follows:

- The reasonableness of keeping of pigeons under clause 5.37(f) of TPS1 within a Special Residential area;
- The total number of pigeons (100-120) allowed. The Health Local Laws enable the City to approve up to 150 birds and therefore a lesser amount could be approved given the residential location, size of lot and siting of loft and rear neighbour's residence.
- The City has discretion under TPS1 to vary setbacks requested under Option 1;

- The validity of the objection received from the rear landowner relating to environmental, health issues and variation to setback requirements. These concerns were investigated by the City and cannot be substantiated from the health viewpoint. Noise and health impacts have been investigated by the City according to the Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997 and Health Act and there are no proven impacts on any of the neighbours. While it is accepted there is some noise from "cooing" of pigeons, this is not to the extent that there is a detrimental impact off site to adjoining landowners, in terms of the Environmental Protection Noise Regulations. Further screening of the loft would help to reduce visual and noise occurring; and
- The relevance of the current Health Local Laws relating to the keeping of pigeons.

The current Health Local Laws relating to keeping of pigeons were relevant to the larger rural lots within the former City of Wanneroo, but may not be appropriate for suburban residential lots within the City of Joondalup. Residential lots within the City of Joondalup range in area from about  $280\,\mathrm{m}^2$  to approximately  $2000\,\mathrm{m}^2$ , compared to the large range of lot sizes in the old City of Wanneroo.

On the above basis, there would seem reasonable grounds to consider the review of the Local Laws, taking into account the predominantly suburban nature of lots in the City.

While Option 2 would satisfy all the setback requirements of TPS1 and the Health Local Laws, the opening will face north and could increase the perception of intrusion to the neighbour. No openings are proposed to the south due the prevailing winds from the south.

Option 1 is preferred because it would, minimise visual intrusion and provide less noise emission to neighbouring lot to the rear. Reduced setbacks are therefore warranted in this instance.

Option 1 involves moving the existing pigeon loft 4.0 metres away from the rear (north) boundary. This option includes the retention of the separate existing wire enclosure to house stock birds.

Additional measures could also be introduced to attenuate amenity impact to the rear neighbour, such as:

- The loft should be fitted with louvres on the eastern side. Louvres could be hinged so that they could be removed during the day and replaced during the night. This would reduce the noise from male pigeons cooing at night during the breeding season. These measures would darken the loft and stop pigeons being active at night and also deflect noise away from objector's property. Furthermore, the opening to the loft faces the east and not the north towards the objector's property; and
- It is further recommended that screen fencing be erected along the northern side of the pigeon loft and stock pigeon wire enclosure to reduce the visual impact together with screen planting. This should also reduce noise;

In recognition of concern over the population of birds, the number of pigeons could also be limited to 120 for this season till December 2000, and thereafter reduced to 100 (excluding young birds) based on the location of the loft, the orientation of development and proximity to the rear residence. The reduction to 100 pigeons is considered reasonable as approvals issued to other pigeon owners is currently 150 maximum, even though those lots are smaller when

compared with the above site. As the Local Law licences are issued on a yearly basis, there would be opportunity to reduce pigeon numbers if the Local Laws were changed to reduce pigeon numbers at a later point in time.

# **MOVED Cr Barnett, SECONDED Cr Rowlands that Council:**

- EXERCISES DISCRETION for the development of a pigeon loft and wire pigeon enclosure, described as Option 1 of the Development Application dated 8 February 2000 at Lot 45 (9) Spoonbill Grove, Kingsley, pursuant to clause 5.9 of the City of Joondalup Town Planning Scheme No 1 to relax the side setback from 5.0 metre to 1.2 metres and the rear setback from 10.0 metres to 4.0 metres on the basis that to require the proposal to comply with the setback requirements would have a greater adverse impact on the amenity of the rear landowner;
- APPROVES the application for a pigeon loft and wire pigeon enclosure described as Option One of the Development Application dated 8 February 2000 under clause 5.37(f) of TPS1 on Lot 45 (9) Spoonbill Grove, Kingsley, subject to the following conditions:
  - (a) all stormwater to be collected on site and disposed of in a manner acceptable to the City;
  - (b) louvers being fitted to the pigeon loft;
  - (c) the pigeon loft being screened from the view of the rear property by:
    - (i) installing mature species of landscaping along the north boundary;
    - (ii) adding screen landscaping in front of the enclosure of the stock pigeons;

the above measures are to be installed within 60 days to the satisfaction of the City;

- (d) the number of pigeons to be limited to 120 till 31 December 2000 and further limited to 100 effective from 1 January 2001, excluding young birds;
- (e) all works associated with the relocation of the loft to be commenced within 1 month of the completion of the pigeon racing season, ie October 2000;
- ADVISES the applicant that the approval in (2) above is subject to a building licence application being acquired and separate application for the keeping of pigeons under the City's Health Local Laws being submitted;
- 4 REVIEWS the City's Health Local Laws relating to the maximum number of pigeons allowed to be kept on a property.

Discussion ensued. In the event that the motion failed, Cr Magyar foreshadowed a motion that Council does not exercise discretion and refuses the application.

#### The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

Appendix 12 refers

To access this attachment on electronic document, click here: Attach12brf110700.pdf

CJ181 - 07/00

PROPOSED SHOPPING CENTRE, CONSULTING ROOMS, STAGE AND OTHER FACILITIES, LOT 715 (NO 110) FLINDERS AVENUE, HILLARYS – [04412]

**WARD** - Whitfords

CJ000711 GRN.DOC:ITEM 3

#### **SUMMARY**

Council considered an application for development of Lot 715 in December 1999. The application was approved, subject to conditions. The proponent was aggrieved by the conditions and appealled to the Town Planning Appeal Tribunal (TPAT).

Revised plans have been lodged during the mediation stage of the appeal. Mediation is a voluntary process entered into by both parties. If the mediation fails (through lack of negotiated agreement), the appeal would proceed to a normal hearing process. The TPAT has requested that Council:

- 1. consider its position on the revised plans and advise accordingly; and
- 2. revisit the original conditions of approval, which are the subject of appeal.

The December 1999 conditions of approval sought to reduce the impact and scale of the development to a level that was anticipated for the site. The December 1999 proposal had been advertised and attracted substantial public comment that also mirrored technical concerns over the extent of development.

The revised plans have not removed the aspects of the development that remain a concern. Some improvement is evident in regard to noise attenuation, however, the revised plans incorporate a larger amount of floor space in total by introducing further non retail land uses (fitness room added and stage area increased in size). Technical concerns regarding car parking provision remain, as well as the potential for adverse amenity impact due to the concentration of land uses on this site, combined with the proximity of adjoining residences.

# **MOVED Cr Wight, SECONDED Cr Barnett that Council:**

DIRECTS the administration to continue to deal with the conditions related to the December 1999 approval in the appeal mediation;

- 2 HAS REGARD to the fact that the appeal application was advertised and attracted substantial public comment from the surrounding residential area, principally focused upon parking, traffic, additional facilities on the northern corner of the site and the intensity of the development and that the revised plan would appear to exacerbate those concerns;
- 3 CONSIDERS that the revised plan incorporates changes which require consideration as a new Development Application;
- 4 REAFFIRMS its conditions of approval issued in December 1999, relative to the original development application.

The Motion was Put and

**CARRIED** 

# REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Nil

# MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

Nil

### DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Council has been scheduled for **7.00 pm** on **TUESDAY**, **25 JULY 2000** to be held in the Council Chamber, Joondalup Civic Centre, Boas Avenue, Joondalup

#### **CLOSURE**

There being no further business, the Mayor declared the Meeting closed at 2100 hrs; the following elected members being present at that time:

J BOMBAK, JP
P KADAK
L A EWEN-CHAPPELL
S P MAGYAR
A T NIXON
J F HOLLYWOOD, JP
A A WALKER
P ROWLANDS
T BARNETT
A W WIGHT, JP
A L PATTERSON
G KENWORTHY
J A HURST
C MACKINTOSH